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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEM

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Head Office

No.181-1 Hejiatang, Chongxian Subdistrict
Linping District, Hangzhou 311108
Zhejiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Room 706, 7/F., Albion Plaza
2-6 Granville Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
R1 %5 1ie) B2

Revenue (RMB'000)

ke (AR%®Tr)
M Electricity &)
B Heat #5
Service AR
753,307

580,240 001,573
513,510
463,119 ‘

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Net Asset Value per share (RMB)
& Gearing Ratio

BEREESRE (ARE¥RT) RAREXLE

61.72%
56.74%

o e
46.09%

44.09%

e

2.15
1.78
157 162
1.42 | I

2019* 2020 2021 2022 2023

Profit for the year (RMB'000)
& Net Profit Margin

FREH (ARWTT) ReiFE

22.72%  21.31% .
17.25% 13.80%

6.90%
123,674

105,216 ' 103,792

70,840

51,930 .

2019* 20207 2021 2022 2023

Dividend (HK$)
BB (#8xT)

W Final K&

0.1

0.056

0.04
0.00 0.00

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Since the acquisition of 100% equity interests in Quzhou Puxing Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd. completed in September 2020 was dealt

with as a business combination under common control, the comparative figures had been restated in accordance with the requirements of the
relevant accounting policies of the Group for business combination under common control.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
R1 %5 1ie B2

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—F-= _E_CF
RMB’000 RMB’000 Change
AREFr AREF T =)
Revenue W 513,510 753,307 -31.83%
Profit from operations K mF 140,772 119,561 17.74%
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders 7s/A 511 & % 58 FE 15 % Al
of the Company R 70,842 51,932 36.41%
Basic Earnings per share SRERRBT RMBO0.154 RMB0.113 36.28%
AR#0.15470 PNEE1BRETH
Dividend per share SREE
- Interim — A Nil Nil 0%
= &
— Proposed final — kAR Nil HK$0.026 -100%
= 0.02638 75
At 31 December
r+ZA=+—H
2023 2022 Change
—E-= _E_CF
RMB’000 RMB’000 .
AREFr AR®ET T =)
Total assets BEE 1,729,629 1,779,710 -2.81%
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders Z5/A 5] %5 J& B8 FE (G 48 2 25
of the Company 816,130 744,885 9.56%
Net asset value per share' SREEFE RMB1.78 RMB1.62 9.88%
AR#1.78t NS AR
Net debt? B F4E? 697,618 869,756 -19.79%
Total capital® B 1,513,748 1,614,641 -6.25%
Gearing ratio* BREEARHLER 46.09% 53.87% -7.78%
Notes: IEE
1 Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 1 KA B R E (L 4R i
Number of ordinary shares in issue BETEERHE
2. Total debts (including interest-bearing borrowings, consideration 2. BHEE (BEAEEE BARE REEAREE
payable, shareholder’s loan and lease liabilities) — Cash and cash 8% —ReKREEEY
equivalents

3. Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company +
Net debt

4. Net debt

Total capital

3. RNAE R RRAE G AR AP

y mHFE
HA M
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) of Puxing Energy Limited (“Puxing
Energy”or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to
present to you the annual report of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

In 2023, with the efforts of the government of the PRC
to keep COVID-19 under strict control and prevention,
and with the end of the global COVID-19 pandemic,
the social and economic activities have resumed in
succession. Meanwhile, affected by the comprehensive
impact of social production and power consumption,
the overall social power consumption demand in
Zhejiang Province remained stable. Based on our own
business development and grid power generation
scheduling needs, the overall power generation
volume of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 decreased by 54.95% to 264,361.73 MWh as
compared to 586,869.83 MWh in 2022. Meanwhile,
with the comprehensive impact of the decrease in
power generation volume and the decrease in heat
sales volume during the year, the total consumption
of natural gas decreased by 51.54% to 68,496,863
m? from 141,333,300 m?® in 2022. The cut in capacity
tariff effective from 1 January 2022 has maintained until
2023, resulted in the capacity tariff revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2023 remaining at the same level
as in 2022. During the year, according to the “Notice
from the Zhejiang Provincial Development and Reform
Commission Regarding the Optimising the Province’s
On-grid Tariff of Natural Gas Power Generation” (Zhe
Fa Gai Price [2021] No. 357) issued by Zhejiang
Provincial Development and Reform Commission (the
“ZDRC”) on 28 September 2021, in order to accelerate
the market-oriented reform of electricity prices and
liberalise the electricity prices in competitive links in an
orderly manner, the capacity tariff of the Company’s
power plants has been adjusted from 1 January 2022.
Meanwhile, a gas-electricity price linkage mechanism
has also been launched, and the monthly electricity
sales price of each power plant of the Company
(except Zhejiang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas Power
Co., Ltd. (“Jingxing Power Plant”), which is a local
dispatch power plant) shall be determined according
to the comprehensive price of natural gas (weighted by
different gas sources and different gas prices).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

After adjustment, the capacity tariff of Zhejiang Puxing
Bluesky Natural Gas Power Co., Ltd. (“Bluesky Power
Plant”), Zhejiang Puxing Deneng Natural Gas Power
Co., Ltd. (“Deneng Power Plant”) and Jingxing Power
Plant under the Company was adjusted to RMB394.8/
kW/year, which remained unchanged as compared to
RMB394.8/kW/year of last year; the capacity tariff of
Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (“Anji
Power Plant”) and Quzhou Puxing Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd.(“Quzhou Power Plant”) was adjusted
to RMB571.2/kW/year, which remained unchanged as
compared to RMB571.2/kW/year of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to RMB70.84 million and earnings per share
was RMBO0.154, representing an increase of 36.28%
as compared with last year. As at 31 December 2023,
total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was RMB816.13 million and net asset value
per share was RMB1.78, representing an increase of
9.88% as compared with last year.

POWER GENERATION BUSINESS

In order to cooperate with the trial implementation of
the Dual Tariff Policy in Zhejiang Province, the relevant
government authorities have organised the 2023
production plan for natural gas power generating units
based on the peak demand within the power grid.
Affected by the end of COVID-19 and the adjustment to
the overall electricity procurement demand of Zhejiang
Province in 20283, the production volume by natural
gas of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2028 decreased by 322,508.10 MWh or 54.95% to
264,361.73 MWh as compared to 586,869.83 MWh in
2022 under the condition of meeting the peak demand
of the power grid.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERHRE

In 2024, affected by the cut in capacity tariff and
the rise in natural gas prices, in order to ensure the
profitability of the Group, the Group will follow up
the dynamics and development of relevant policies
continuously, and will optimize the business methods
of natural gas power generation business in due
course. Meanwhile, actively research and discuss with
the natural gas power generation enterprises in the
province how to solve the current difficulties faced by
the natural gas power generation industry, and call for
government policy support.

HEATING BUSINESS

The Anji Power Plant and Quzhou Power Plant under
the Group provide steam to manufacturers near heating
pipelines. The maximum hourly heating capacity is
approximately 360 tons (2022: 360 tons).

During the year, affected by the end of the COVID-19,
the adjustment of natural gas prices, the decline of
heat supply and other factors, the number of heat
users and demand decreased, the heating price
decreased and the overall heat sales volume of the
Company decreased. The Group’s heat sales volume
for the year ended 31 December 2023 decreased by
20.19% to 113,387 tons as compared to 142,073
tons in 2022; the revenue from sales of heat for the
year ended 31 December 2023 decreased by 21.52%
to RMB44,628,000 as compared to RMB56,869,000
in 2022. The average selling price (inclusive of VAT)
decreased by 1.67% to approximately RMB429.01/
ton as compared to approximately RMB436.31/ton in
2022.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

OUTLOOK

2024 will be a challenging year for Puxing Energy. The
cut in capacity tariff in Zhejiang Province has brought
a severe test to the profitability of Puxing Energy.
The Group will closely follow the development of the
electricity market, actively study and explore new
forms of business models, strive to find new market
convergence points, strengthen the development of
heating business, and strengthen cost management,
cooperate with the continuous implementation of
refined management and strict cost control, actively
face challenges, so as to minimise the impact of policy
changes.

Looking ahead, the government of PRC’s firm
commitment to the “double carbon” goal of peaking
carbon emission and achieving carbon neutrality,
firm acceleration in the development of new energy,
optimisation of its energy structure, and embarkation
on a green, low-carbon and circular development path.
The fields of green power, energy storage, and smart
energy will usher in a period of significant opportunities
for development, which will bring huge opportunities for
the Group for transforming into an integrated energy
supplier. As an energy company with energy as its
development core, with the goal of transforming into
an integrated energy supplier and achieving diversified
development of its energy business, the Group will
increase research on national new energy policies,
strive to find new opportunities, strive for different
types of energy projects, diversify its energy business
structure, and make unremitting efforts to enhance the
Group’s long-term growth potential and shareholder
value.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERHRE

Finally, | hereby extend my sincere gratitude to
the shareholders, business partners, directors,
management team as well as the loyal and diligent staff
members of the Group for their continuous support.

GUAN Dayuan
Chairman

Zhejiang Province, PRC, 28 March 2024

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

RE AANELAFTERRR BEBHF B
Z EEEBNERDENE THFESS
B RROBIREH o

EXE
EFR

FEMIIE —EME=8"_+/\H




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is mainly engaged in the development,
operation and management of natural gas-fired power
plants. The Group has five wholly-owned gas-fired
power plants in Zhejiang Province, with an aggregate
installed capacity of 688.07 megawatt (MW) (2022:
688.07 MW) (including 1,072 kilowatt (kW) (2022:
1,072 kW) photovoltaic power generating units) with a
maximum heating capacity per hour of 360 tons (2022:
360 tons).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, with the efforts of the government of the PRC
to keep COVID-19 under strict control and prevention,
and with the end of the global COVID-19 pandemic,
the social and economic activities have resumed in
succession. Meanwhile, affected by the comprehensive
impact of social production and power consumption,
the overall social power consumption demand in
Zhejiang Province remained stable. Based on our own
business development and grid power generation
scheduling needs, the overall power generation
volume of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 decreased by 54.95% to 264,361.73 MWh as
compared to 586,869.83 MWh in 2022. Meanwhile,
with the comprehensive impact of the decrease in
power generation volume and the decrease in heat
sales volume during the year, the total consumption of
natural gas decreased by 51.54% to 68,496,863 m?® for
the year ended 31 December 2023 from 141,333,300
m?® in 2022. The cut in capacity tariff effective from 1
January 2022 has maintained until 2023, resulted in the
capacity tariff revenue in 2023 remaining at the same
level as in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFmADN

During the year, according to the “Notice from
the Zhejiang Provincial Development and Reform
Commission Regarding the Optimising the Province’s
On-grid Tariff of Natural Gas Power Generation” (Zhe
Fa Gai Price [2021] No. 357) issued by ZDRC on 28
September 2021, in order to accelerate the market-
oriented reform of electricity prices and liberalise the
electricity prices in competitive links in an orderly
manner, the capacity tariff of the Company’'s power
plants has been adjusted from 1 January 2022.
Meanwhile, a gas-electricity price linkage mechanism
has also been launched, and the monthly electricity
sales price of each power plant of the Company
(except Jingxing Power Plant, which is a local dispatch
power plant) shall be determined according to the
comprehensive price of natural gas (weighted by
different gas sources and different gas prices).

After adjustment, the capacity tariff of Bluesky Power
Plant, Deneng Power Plant and Jingxing Power Plant
under the Company was adjusted to RMB394.8/kW/
year, which remained unchanged as compared to
RMB394.8/kW/year of last year; the capacity tariff
of Anji Power Plant and Quzhou Power Plant was
adjusted to RMB571.2/kW/year, which remained
unchanged as compared to RMB571.2/kW/year of last
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year, affected by the end of the COVID-19,
the adjustment of natural gas prices, the decline of heat
supply and other factors, the number of heat users
and demand decreased, the heating price decreased
and the overall heat sales volume of the Company
decreased. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group’s heat sales volume decreased by 20.19%
to 113,387 tons as compared to 142,073 tons in
2022, and the revenue from sales of heat for the year
ended 31 December 2023 decreased by 21.52% to
RMB44,628,000 as compared to RMB56,869,000 in
2022.

During the year, ZDRC adjusted the volume tariff of
natural gas power generating units and gate station
price for natural gas (inclusive of value-added tax
(VAT)) for several times. After several adjustments
during the year, the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of
Bluesky Power Plant under the Group was adjusted
from RMBO0.8780/kilowatt hour (kWh) at the beginning
of the year to RMBO0.7899/kWh at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.03%; the
volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Deneng Power Plant
was adjusted from RMB0.8944/kWh at the beginning
of the year to RMBO0.7047/kWh at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of approximately 21.21%; the
volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Jingxing Power Plant
was adjusted from RMB0.9405/kWh at the beginning
of the year to RMB0.9028/kWh at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of approximately 4.01%; the
volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Anji Power Plant was
adjusted from RMBO0.8200/kWh at the beginning of
the year to RMBO0.7689/kWh at the end of the vyear,
representing a decrease of approximately 6.23%;
the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Quzhou Power
Plant was adjusted from RMBO0.8028/kWh at the
beginning of the year to RMBO0.7746/kWh at the end
of the year, representing a decrease of approximately
3.51%. The price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of
Bluesky Power Plant under the Group was adjusted
from RMB3.8113/m? at the beginning of the year to
RMB3.4285/m?® at the end of the year, representing
a decrease of approximately 10.04%; the price of
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of Deneng Power Plant
was adjusted from RMB3.8825/m® at the beginning
of the year to RMB3.0587/m® at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of approximately 21.22%;
the price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of Jingxing
Power Plant was adjusted from RMB4.11/m® at the
beginning of the year to RMB3.43/m?® at the end of the
year, representing a decrease of approximately 16.55%;
the price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of Aniji
Power Plant was adjusted from RMB3.8757/m?® at the
beginning of the year to RMB3.634/m? at the end of the
year, representing a decrease of approximately 6.24%;
the price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of Quzhou
Power Plant was adjusted from RMB3.7944/m?® at the
beginning of the year to RMB3.6611/m® at the end
of the year, representing a decrease of approximately
3.51%; the capacity tariff of each power plant (inclusive
of VAT) remained unchanged during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EQUITY INSTALLED CAPACITY

As at 31 December 2023, the equity installed capacity
of power plants held and operated by the Group are as
follows:

The total installed capacity of the power generating
units in the power plants under the Group was 688.07
MW, with a total equity installed capacity of 688.07
MW and the equity interest proportion of 100%.
Among them, the total installed capacity of the power
generating units in Bluesky Power Plant was 112.34
MW, with a total equity installed capacity of 112.34 MW
and the equity interest proportion of 100%, in which
the installed capacity of natural gas power generating
units was 112 MW, and the installed capacity of
photovoltaic power generating units was 0.34 MW. The
total installed capacity of the power generating units in
Deneng Power Plant was 112 MW, with a total equity
installed capacity of 112 MW and the equity interest
proportion of 100%, in which the installed capacity of
natural gas power generating units was 112 MW. The
total installed capacity of the power generating units in
Jingxing Power Plant was 75.22 MW, with a total equity
installed capacity of 75.22 MW and the equity interest
proportion of 100%, in which the installed capacity of
natural gas power generating units was 75 MW, and
the installed capacity of photovoltaic power generating
units was 0.22 MW. The total installed capacity of the
power generating units in Anji Power Plant was 158.36
MW, with a total equity installed capacity of 158.36 MW
and the equity interest proportion of 100%, in which
the installed capacity of natural gas power generating
units was 158 MW, and the installed capacity of
photovoltaic power generating units was 0.36 MW. The
total installed capacity of the power generating units
in Quzhou Power Plant was 230.15 MW, with a total
equity installed capacity of 230.15 MW and the equity
interest proportion of 100%, in which the installed
capacity of natural gas power generating units was 230
MW, and the installed capacity of photovoltaic power
generating units was 0.15 MW.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Production Volume
Natural Gas Power Generation

In order to cooperate with the trial implementation of
the Dual Tariff Policy in Zhejiang Province, the relevant
government authorities have organised the 2023
production plan for natural gas power generating units
based on the peak demand within the power grid.
Affected by the end of COVID-19 and the adjustment to
the overall electricity procurement demand of Zhejiang
Province in 20283, the production volume by natural
gas of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 decreased by 322,508.10 MWh or 54.95% to
264,361.73 MWh as compared to 586,869.83 MWh in
2022 under the condition of meeting the peak demand
of the power grid.

Photovoltaic Power Generation

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
installed capacity of photovoltaic generating units
was 1,072 kW (2022: 1,072 kW), the electricity
generated is mainly used to supplement the auxiliary
power consumption rate of the power plants, and the
remainder will be sold to the power grid.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, photovoltaics
production volume of the Group was approximately
1,135 MWh (2022: approximately 777 MWh), of which
approximately 113 MWh (2022: approximately 116
MWh) was sold to the power grid.

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BHEE
XAREE

AEEIIERITH MBS E BB 1868
BTSSP ZEmEBREREERZH T
T EFEERARLEMBEEESE W
BEBERFERENIE -_ZE =%
BEESERBAER - EREERPBREKXREBER
T RERBEE_ZE_=ZF+_"_FB=+—H
IEEENRAREEEL5264,361.73IKE,
B8 — T~ — 4 1586,869.83JK K BRF R D
322,508.10JK FLBF 8 [§54.95% ©

BE _ZE_=—F+_A=+—HIFE K

EEMARBEERABER1,072FR (ZF

::E 1,072FR) FrsEETEZARERT
EBRMEAEZA BT OEHEFTEHE-

BHE_Z_="F+"RA=+—HIFE &K
EENARBEENA11BKER (-
£ ,.fj?f—ri_',???JbEE%) » BRI ER (=
T F I NI16IKER) HETEH-




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year, the Group saved power consumption
cost of RMB618,600 (2022: RMB389,700) through
photovoltaic power generation and realised a revenue
of RMB67,400 (2022: RMB147,400).

Heat Sales Volume

The Anji Power Plant and Quzhou Power Plant under
the Group provide steam to manufacturers near heating
pipelines. The maximum hourly heating capacity is
approximately 360 tons (2022: 360 tons).

During the year, affected by the end of the COVID-19,
the adjustment of natural gas prices, the decline of heat
supply and other factors, the number of heat users
and demand decreased, the heating price decreased
and the overall heat sales volume of the Company
decreased. The Group’s heat sales volume for the year
ended 31 December 2023 decreased by 20.19% to
113,387 tons as compared to 142,073 tons in 2022;
the revenue from sales of heat decreased by 21.52%
to RMB44,628,000 as compared to RMB56,869,000
in 2022. The average selling price (inclusive of VAT)
decreased by 1.67% to approximately RMB429.01/
ton as compared to approximately RMB436.31/ton in
2022.

The revenue from sales of heat of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB44,628,000
(2022: RMB56,869,000).

BEEHmADN

FRAEBEBECARZERZBEEREA
R1618,6007T (2= — 4 . AR1389,700
) BEREBUREARKE7,400T (ZF
— % AR%147,4007T) °

ERnE
AEBEIBEHTE LS B M EMNE /K
EENITHBRIEHEZR S 8/\BRAHAE
AE#) A 360ME (Z = — 4 : 360M) °

FRZHMBRBERRRIRAEBRAE > #
HETRESEREZGFETE 2ARER
ERBLD  HABKE TR AREEBERST
RoREFBHE_E_=F+_8F=+—H
ITEEERER -2 - " F8142,073HF
[%20.19% %2 113,387MF » $HE M HIK A 8 =
=~ —F ANRE#56,869,0007T K FE21.52%F
ANE#44,628,0007c° FHEE (FIZER)
R -_E-__FENESMHAA ARK436.317T
TE1.67T%EBMAA ARE429.017T 0

rERRE_ T _=—F+"_BA=+—HLHE
ERHERHIKA A AREE44,628,0007T (—
T F . AR¥56,869,0007T) ©

ZEREFRAT | —B-=£FERE




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Fuel Cost and Natural Gas Usage

All power plants under the Group use natural gas as
fuel for power generation, while Anji Power Plant and
Quzhou Power Plant under the Group also use natural
gas as fuel for heating at the same time. Natura
gas is the only source of fuel for the Group and is
mainly provided by the suppliers of the Group, namely
Zhejiang Zheneng Natural Gas Trading Co., Ltd. Gif
IHBERAREZBRAR), PetroChina Company
Limited Zhejiang Sale Branch (FE A HXARKED

BERABRARHBEEMINDAE), and PipeChina
Zhejiang Provincial Natural Gas Pipeline Network Co.,

Ltd. (BIREMEBRNIERAKTEB/BRAF) .

During the year, under the organisation of the Energy
Bureau in Zhejiang Province, all power plants under the
Group signed a special contract for natural gas sales
with several natural gas suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The natural gas price in Zhejiang Province is
determined by ZDRC. According to the adjustment of
natural gas price made by ZDRC during the year, the
price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of Bluesky Power
Plant under the Group was adjusted from RMB3.8113/
m? at the beginning of the year to RMB3.4285/
m?® at the end of the year, representing a decrease
of approximately 10.04%; the price of natural gas
(inclusive of VAT) of Deneng Power Plant was adjusted
from RMB3.8825/m® at the beginning of the year to
RMB3.0587/m? at the end of the year, representing a
decrease of approximately 21.22%; the price of natural
gas (inclusive of VAT) of Jingxing Power Plant was
adjusted from RMB4.11/m? at the beginning of the year
to RMB3.43/m?® at the end of the year, representing a
decrease of approximately 16.55%; the price of natural
gas (inclusive of VAT) of Anji Power Plant was adjusted
from RMB3.8757/m? at the beginning of the year to
RMB3.634/m?® at the end of the year, representing
a decrease of approximately 6.24%; the price of
natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of Quzhou Power Plant
was adjusted from RMB3.7944/m?® at the beginning
of the year to RMB3.6611/m? at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of approximately 3.51%.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, fuel costs
amounted to RMB211,665,000, representing a
decrease of 54.90% as compared to RMB469,318,000
in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023 was RMB70,842,000, representing an increase
of RMB18,910,000 or 36.41%, as compared to
RMB51,932,000 in 2022. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the basic and diluted earnings per
share of the Company amounted to RMBO0.154,
representing an increase of RMBO0.041 or 36.28% as
compared to RMB0.113 in 2022.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group comprises volume tariff revenue,
capacity tariff revenue, revenue from sales of heat and
revenue from provision of operation and maintenance
services. Based on the own business development
of the Group and grid power generation scheduling
needs, the electricity sales volume, the heat supply
and heating prices decreased in 2023. Revenue of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
amounted to RMB513,510,000, representing a
decrease of RMB239,797,000 or 31.83% as compared
to RMB753,307,000 in 2022.

Operating Expenses

During the year, the Group’s operating expenses
mainly comprised fuel consumption, depreciation
and amortisation, repairs and maintenance, staff
costs, administrative expenses, sales related taxes
and other operating expenses. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group’s operating expenses
were RMB372,738,000, representing a decrease
of RMB261,008,000 or 41.18% as compared to
RMB633,746,000 in 2022. The decrease in operating
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in fuel costs
along with the production volume.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit from Operations

Affected by a decrease in fuel costs, and a decrease
in power generation costs caused by the decrease
in power generation, the profit from operations of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
was RMB140,772,000, representing an increase
of RMB21,211,000 or 17.74% as compared to
RMB119,561,000 in 2022.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2023, net finance
costs of the Group amounted to RMB36,878,000,
representing a decrease of RMB9,682,000 or 20.79%
as compared to RMB46,560,000 in 2022. The
decrease in net financial costs was mainly due to
the reasonable arrangement of funds, repayment of
borrowings due within the year and the decrease in
borrowing rates, resulting in a decrease in interest
expenses during the year.

Income Tax

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject
to the unified tax rate of 25%. For the year ended
31 December 2023, income tax expenses of the
Group amounted to RMB36,797,000, representing an
increase of RMB12,149,000 or 49.29% as compared
to RMB24,648,000 in 2022. The increase in income tax
for the year was mainly due to an increase in profit from
operations.

Earnings per Share

For the year ended 31 December 2023, net profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to RMB70,842,000 (2022: RMB51,932,000).
The basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to
RMBO0.154, representing an increase of RMB0.041 or
36.28% as compared to RMBO0.113 in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Major Acquisitions, Disposals and Major
Investment Activities

The Group had no major acquisition, disposal and
major investment activities relating to its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are
denominated in Renminbi (RMB) and Hong Kong
Dollar (HKD). As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB130,719,000
(81 December 2022: RMB89,431,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had current
assets of RMB251,272,000 (831 December 2022:
RMB221,946,000), current liabilities of RMB536,27 1,000
(31 December 2022: RMB504,796,000) and net current
liabilities of RMB284,999,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB282,850,000) with a current ratio of 0.47 (31
December 2022: 0.44). The increase in current ratio
was mainly attributable to an increase in cash and cash
equivalents, resulting in an increase in current assets.

As at 31 December 2023, the Groups had unused
revolving loan credit facilities granted by Wanxiang
Finance Co., Ltd. (“Wanxiang Finance”), a subsidiary of
Wanxiang Group Corporation (“Wanxiang Group”), of
RMB157 million (2022: RMB194 million).

Sources of funds of the Group are mainly cash inflows
from operating activities and loans granted by banks
and related parties. The Group regularly monitors
its gearing ratio to control its capital structure. At
the same time, the Group also regularly monitors its
liquidity position, projected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, as well as
maintains long-term sound relationships with major
banks to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity to meet its
working capital requirements and future development
needs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Debts

All the debts of the Group are denominated in RMB
and HKD. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
had total debts of RMB828,337,000 (31 December
2022: RMB959,187,000), including shareholder’s
loan of RMB112,866,000 (2022: RMB106,506,000),
lease liabilities of RMB96,000 (2022: RMB271,000),
unsecured bank loans guaranteed by related
parties of RMB72,768,000 (2022: RMB70,075,000),
and unsecured loans from related parties of
RMB642,607,000 (2022: RMB675,680,000). Among
them, unsecured bank loans guaranteed by related
parties and unsecured loans from related parties were
denominated in RMB and subject to adjustment in
accordance with relevant regulations of the People’s
Bank of China. The interest rate of unsecured bank
loans guaranteed by related parties was adjusted to
3.5% (2022: 3.5%) per annum, and the interest rate of
unsecured loans from related parties was adjusted to
3.45% to 3.7% (2022: 3.7% to 4.75%) per annum.

Regarding the overdue principal amount of a loan
advanced by Puxing International Limited (the
controlling shareholder of the Company) (“Puxing
International”) to the Company pursuant to a loan
agreement dated 31 December 2017 together with
the interest thereon (the “Outstanding Amount”),
the Company is actively negotiating with Puxing
International on an extension for the repayment of
the Outstanding Amount. At the same time, the
Company will explore other possible fund raising
options, including but not limited to, debt and/or equity
fund raising or disposal of its assets to repay the
Outstanding Amount. Please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated on 31 May 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total debts (including interest-bearing borrowings,
shareholder’s loan, consideration payable and lease
liabilities, as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company (as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) plus net
debt. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gearing
ratio was 46.09% (31 December 2022: 53.87%).

Capital Expenditures

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
invested RMB5,571,000 (2022: RMB9,390,000) mainly
for the construction of the heat grid construction of
Anji Power Plant, as well as the costs of technological
renovation and maintenance of equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital
commitments of RMB275,655,000 (31 December
2022: RMB57,641,000) mainly for the construction of
new energy storage power station project of Bluesky
Power Plant, the heat grid (phase Il) of Anji Power Plant
and the technological renovation and maintenance of
power generation units.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no
assets pledged.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no
material contingent liability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Exchange Rate Risk

The Group primarily operates its business in Chinese
mainland and most of the transactions are settled in
RMB. Except for certain cash and cash equivalents,
borrowings and lease liabilities that are denominated
in HKD, the Group’s assets and liabilities are mainly
denominated in RMB. The Group considers that its
current foreign exchange risk is insignificant and
therefore has not hedged it through any derivative for
the time being. However, the management of the Group
will continue monitoring its foreign currency exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
risks should the need arise.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of
266 employees, excluding 2 trainees (31 December
2022: 290 employees, excluding O trainee). For the
year ended 31 December 2023, total employees’
remuneration (including Directors’ remuneration and
benefits) was RMB27,329,000 (2022: RMB27,693,000).
The Group determines employees’ remuneration
according to industry practices, financial performance
and employees’ performance. In addition, the Group
provides employees with training and benefits, such as
insurance, medical benefits and mandatory provident
fund contributions, with an aim to retain talents of all
levels for further contribution to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Prospects

2024 will be a challenging year for Puxing Energy. The
cut in capacity tariff in Zhejiang Province has brought
a severe test to the profitability of Puxing Energy.
The Group will closely follow the development of the
electricity market, actively study and explore new
forms of business models, strive to find new market
convergence points, strengthen the development of
heating business, and strengthen cost management,
cooperate with the continuous implementation of
refined management and strict cost control, actively
face challenges, so as to minimise the impact of policy
changes.

Looking ahead, the government of PRC’s firm
commitment to the “double carbon” goal of peaking
carbon emission and achieving carbon neutrality,
firm acceleration in the development of new energy,
optimisation of its energy structure, and embarkation
on a green, low-carbon and circular development path.
The fields of green power, energy storage, and smart
energy will usher in a period of significant opportunities
for development, which will bring huge opportunities for
the Group for transforming into an integrated energy
supplier. As an energy company with energy as its
development core, with the goal of transforming into
an integrated energy supplier and achieving diversified
development of its energy business, the Group will
increase research on national new energy policies,
strive to find new opportunities, strive for different
types of energy projects, diversify its energy business
structure, and make unremitting efforts to enhance the
Group’s long-term growth potential and shareholder
value.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEkEHREEAEBRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GUAN Dayuan (“Mr. Guan”), aged 60, was
appointed as the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”), an executive Director, an authorised
representative of the Company (the “Authorised
Representative”) under rule 3.05 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Board (“Nomination Committee”) and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Board
(“Remuneration Committee”) in March 2024. Mr. Guan
graduated from Capital University of Economics and
Trade* (EH#BASE AZ) in 1998 with a Master’s degree
in Enterprise Management. He is currently a senior
economist and a member of the Communist Party of
China.

Since March 1980, Mr. Guan held various positions
in Wanxiang Group Corporation* (BE&EEAT)
(“Wanxiang Group”) and its subsidiaries, including
assistant to the general manager and director of
general manager’s office at Wanxiang Group, general
manager of Shenzhen Wanxiang Investment Co., Ltd.*
CEINBEIEEARRAT), chairman of the board
of directors of SAIC Wanxiang New Energy Coach
Co., Ltd.* (EABAHMEEREERRASB), Dading
Petroleum Logistics Co., Ltd.* (KESHFEARER
&), Wanxiang Doneed Co., Ltd.* (BaEERNE
FfR/AF]) (Stock Code: 600371), and Shunfa Hengye
Corporation* (JEZEZK KB A7) (Stock Code:
000631), chairman of the board of supervisors of
Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited* (& £ Z 51 B[R
‘AF]), senior executive vice president of the Wanxiang
Group, chairman of the board of directors, executive
director and financial officer of Wanxiang Qianchao Co.,
Ltd.* (BA$2ERR{H /A 5)) (Stock Code: 000559), the
general manager and legal representative of Wanxiang
A123 Systems Corporation* (BE—_=RKRHPAT)
(“Wanxiang A123”), and director of Wanxiang Group.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Guan currently holds various positions, such as
deputy secretary of the Party Committee of Wanxiang
Group, vice chairman of the board of directors of
Wanxiang A123, chairman of the board of directors,
legal representative and general manager of Shangwan
Clean Intelligent Vehicle Co., Ltd.* (E&EBREEFHE
BEBR/AE]), general manager of the branch company
of Clean Intelligent Vehicle Co., Ltd.* CEREEFE
A2 7)), party secretary of Hangzhou Wanxiang
Polytechnic* (0N & m B £ iT2265%) , chairman of the
board of supervisors of Shunfa Hengye and Wanxiang
Finance Co., Ltd.* (BEMBERAE) (“Wanxiang
Finance”), chairman of the board of directors of
Wanxiang Resources Co., Ltd.* (BAEERABRAT),
supervisor of Shanghai Advanced Traction Battery
Systems Co., Ltd.* (EBREMEBNEMNRABERA
&) and Karma (China) Clean Intelligent Vehicle Co.,
Ltd.* (F3k (RE]) BeEEEEBRAE), executive
director of Karma Automotive LLC (KARMA (813K) 5
E/AF]), supervisor of Mingsheng Charity Foundation*
(REBELAHESE), and non-executive director
of Guangzhou Automobile Group Co., Ltd. (BEMSE
EERMEIE/AT) (@ company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2238).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEkEHREEAEBRE

Mr. WEI Junyong (“Mr. Wei”), aged 55, joined the
Company in September 2015 as a non-executive
Director. Over the years serving in the Company,
Mr. Wei has been the Chairman, a non-executive
Director, an Authorised Representative, the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. He is currently the executive
Director, an Authorised Representative and the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company, namely Puxing
Tian (HK) Limited, Puxing Xing (HK) Limited and Puxing
An (HK) Limited.

Mr. Wei graduated from Harbin Engineering University
in 1991 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering,
majoring in electronic engineering, and from China
Europe International Business School in 2008 with a
master’s degree in management, majoring in business
administration. Mr. Wei has over 20 years of experience
in corporate operations management and has held
various key management positions in Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd. and its subsidiaries.
Since 2009, Mr. Wei had acted as a director, the
president, an executive committee member, the
financial officer and the chief financial officer of
Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Mr. Wei is currently
a non-executive director of Wanxiang Qianchao Co.,
Ltd. (B @D B RA ) (@ company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and ultimately controlled by
Wanxiang Group, stock code: 000559).
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. YUAN Feng (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 39, was
appointed as a non-executive Director in March 2024.
He graduated from Hubei University of Technology*
GBIt % KX2) in 2008 with a bachelor’s degree
in engineering, majoring in electronic information
engineering. He also obtained a master’'s degree in
engineering in 2011, majoring in control systems
and control theory. He is currently a member of the
Communist Party of China.

From July 2011 to November 2012, Mr. Yuan worked
in the research and development department of the
Technology Center of Wanxiang Group* (BE%EEA
£ T A E2 E6) . From November 2012 to January
2022, he worked in the chief and legal affairs office*
(BEAEHTIE=E). From April 2015 to March
2022, he worked as the assistant to the chairman of
the board of directors of Minsheng Life Insurance Co.,

Lid." (REASFRERHBRAF).

Mr. Yuan currently holds various positions, such as the
vice general manager of Wanxiang Finance, director
of Zhejiang Property & Stock Exchange Co., Ltd.* Gifi
IERRZFARAT), chairman of the board of
directors, legal representative and general manager of
Xiang Sanchuang Co., Ltd.* (A=AIEH AF).

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

FERITESF

RERE (TREE) 9 R_E_ME=
PBEZEAENTEST R _SEN\EE2X
Rt T ARE ETEES S8 TEEF
EEIRFEXE - RNHIN _S——FET2E
TEA BT RGAITRIERFEE KR
ATEEEEES-

BE_E——Ft+tBRE_E—_F+—HA'%
RETBREREBR QAR FMAPCFE-
B —_&+—RHBE_ZEZ-__&#—H '
ERRERE I IEE-BE_S—H&EN
BE_Z__F=ZR WRECREASFR
RIDBERATDESZTRENIE

RELHAEEZERSE NS H/MFE
BMEE - IERRZRERARES A=
AIRMABDESR EAEARARBERE




BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSE Chi Man (“Mr. Tse”), aged 70, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2009. Mr. Tse holds a bachelor’s degree and
a master’s degree in business administration from the
University of Texas, Arlington. Mr. Tse has over 20 years
of experience in finance and business development
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tse
held various positions in a number of organisations,
including as a director of Chase Manhattan Asia
Limited, a mergers and acquisitions director of
Inchcape Pacific Limited, an executive director of
Lerado Group (Holding) Company Limited (now known
as Lerado Financial Group Company Limited) (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1225) and a managing director of Dresdner Kleinwort
Benson (China) Limited. Mr. Tse worked at Imagi
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0585), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, from 1999 to
2008 and was appointed as a director in 2004, and as
the chief financial officer in 2007 who was responsible
for overseeing the company’s accounting and finance,
administration and human resources functions. Mr. Tse
was also a member of the Design Institute Advisory
Board of Vocational Training Council.

Mr. YAO Xianguo (“Mr. Yao”), aged 71, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2009. Mr. Yao holds a master’s degree in
economics from Fudan University. He is currently a
professor at the School of Public Affairs, Zhejiang
University, a member of The Expect Evaluation
Committee of National Social Science Foundation of
China, a member of the Zhejiang Government Advisory
Council. Mr. Yao is currently an independent non-
executive director of UniTTEC Co., Ltd. (Stock Code:
000925), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. He was also an independent non-executive
director of Hithink RoyalFlush Information Network Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 300033), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from December 2013 to
March 2020.
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Mr. YU Wayne W. (“Mr. Yu”), aged 61, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in August 2012. Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree, a Master of Arts (Economics)
degree and a Ph.D. (Finance) degree. Mr. Yu is
a Chartered Financial Analyst and is currently a
professor of City University of Hong Kong. Before
joining City University of Hong Kong, Mr. Yu was a
professor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
an assistant professor of the School of Business at
Queen’s University in Canada. Mr. Yu is currently an
independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Haers
Vacuum Containers Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002615),
a member of the Oversight, Policy and Governance
Committee of the Financial Reporting Council, an
independent non-executive director of Concord
Medical Services Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the New York Stock Exchange, stock code: CCM),
and an independent non-executive director of China
Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 02377).
From June 2019 to June 2022, Mr. Yu also served
as an independent non-executive director of Richinfo
Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300634).
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report
together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the development, operation and management of
power plants fueled by natural gas in the PRC. Details
of the activities and other particulars of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the
year and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development are set out in the Chairman’s Statement
as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 8 to 12 and pages 13 to 28 of this annual
report, respectively. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 13 to 28 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company is one of the earliest enterprises entering
the natural gas power generation field in the PRC and
is aware of its responsibility towards environmental
protection. The Group, which commits to sustainable
development of the environment and the society, has
continuously input resources and implemented the
emission management policy of all kinds of pollutant
as well as other environmental protection management
standards to reduce the impact of its business
operation on the environment.
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For further information about the environmental policies
and performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023, please refer to the environmental,
social and governance (ESG) report to be issued before
end of April 2024.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As an entity incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
listed in Hong Kong, the Company is mainly governed
by the Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong
Kong (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”) and the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the corporate level. Each of the
committees of the Board has its own terms of reference
defining its respective rights, duties and obligation.
The Board adopted a code of conduct (the “Code of
Conduct”) regarding the securities transactions of the
Directors and relevant employees (as defined in code
provision C.1.3 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the “Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”).

At the operational level, the Group conducted
its business in accordance with, among others,
the Electric Power Law of the PRC and all other
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC in relation
to the electric power industry, energy conservation,
environmental protection and safety production. In
addition, all business units of the Group have acted in
compliance with the local labour laws and regulations.
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During the year, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, there is no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group which has a significant impact on its business
and operations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its employees, customers,
suppliers, governments and business associates to
fulfil its long-term goals and support its development.
To enhance its competitiveness, the Group aims
at delivering high quality services to its customers
continuously. During the year, there was no material
or significant dispute between the Group and its
stakeholders.

For further information about the Group’s key
relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2023,
please refer to the ESG report to be issued before end
of April 2024.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business
operations of the Group may affect the Group’s
financial conditions or growth prospects. The
Group has been focusing on the control of risks
and uncertainties with the aim of understanding
and addressing the concerns of stakeholders, and
accepting them in an informed way. Details of the risk
management framework of the Group are set out in
the section headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” in the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report, and the key risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group are listed below:
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Risk relating to price fluctuation and supplies of
natural gas

The business of the Group relies exclusively on natural
gas as fuel source which is currently provided by
only one to two suppliers. If there is a shortage or
interruption in the supply of natural gas in Zhejiang
province, the business of the Group may be materially
and adversely affected. In addition, costs of natural gas
represented a significant proportion of the operating
expenses of the Group. As the gas prices applicable
to the Group are determined by the ZDRC, an increase
in natural gas costs will increase the operating cost
of the Group and may adversely affect its profitability.
If, in the future, the government authorities decide to
increase the prices of natural gas, but not the on-grid
tariffs, or the on-grid tariffs are not adjusted accordingly
in a timely manner, or the rate of increase in on-grid
tariffs is less than the rate of increase in the prices of
natural gas, the Group will not be able to pass on the
increased costs to its customers, and may adversely
affect its profitability.
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Follow the gradual opening of the natural gas market
and pipe network facilities in the PRC since 2020,
the Group will actively follow up relevant information,
communicate with other natural gas suppliers on the
premise of not affecting the overall situation of the
Dual Tariff Policy, and strive to allow enterprises to
organise high-quality low-cost gas sources into the
provincial pipe network by multi-channels to reduce its
production costs.

Risk relating to change in policies in relation to
electricity retail market

With further reform of the national electricity system
in the PRC, Zhejiang province has been one of the
pilot sites for electricity system reform. The change of
electricity retail market policies created opportunities
for the Group to expand and diversify its customer
base. However, the operations of the Group may also
be affected by entering the electricity retail market,
such as increased complexity of the business mode,
market fluctuation of exchange tariffs and other factors.
The Group will actively follow policy guidance, intensify
the research on state policies, and take various
measures to assess the risks and benefits that may
affect the Group by changes in the electricity market so
as to seize the opportunities resulted from the relevant
risks.

Risk relating to change in PRC government
policies to electric power industry

In September 2021, the PRC government announced
a reduction of incentives to the Group with effect from
1 January 2022 which adversely affected both the
revenue and profit of the Group. Despite the latest
policies implemented and incentives provided by the
PRC government are still favourable to the business of
the Group, if such policies and incentives are further
reduced or are no longer available in the future, the
financial results of the Group may be further adversely
affected.
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Risk relating to funding adequacy

With the Group’s objective to transform into an
integrated energy supplier, funding adequacy will have
an increasing impact on the Group’s operations and
development. The financial market is affected by a
number of factors such as the economic environment,
prevailing market sentiment and the liquidity of the
lending market. The Group always leverages its
capability of accessing the PRC and overseas markets
to optimise its funding sources, increase its credit
facilities and lower its financing costs. The Group
has also adopted various cost-saving and efficiency
enhancement initiatives to its business management
to minimise its administrative and operating expenses.
Despite the funding risks of the Group has been
reduced by the financial services framework agreement
(“Financial Services Agreement”) entered into between
the Group and Wanxiang Finance, the Group may
still consider raising funds from different sources to
ensure the Group can develop and operate towards its
objective when necessary.
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Risk relating to current liabilities position of the
Group

The Group had net current liabilities position since the
financial year ended 31 December 2012, which was
principally due to utilisation of short-term bank loans
and other borrowings for financing the Group’s capital
expenditure. The Group continuously seeks to convert
its short-term borrowings to long-term borrowings to
improve its net current liabilities position or settle the
short-term bank loans and other borrowings with long-
term loans. There can be no assurance that the Group
will always be able to raise the necessary finance by
borrowing from banks and other financial institutions
to finance its business, operations and capital
expenditure. In the event that the existing banking and
credit facilities do not continue to extend with similar or
more favourable facilities to the Group and the Group
fails to obtain alternative banking and credit facilities on
reasonable terms, the Group’s business and financial
position may be adversely affected. The Group may be
required to issue additional equity or debt securities
which could result in dilution to the equity interest of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
and the incurrence of additional indebtedness would
result in increased fixed obligations and could result in
operating covenants that restricts its operation.

Risk relating to financial instruments

The Group is exposed to certain risks arising from
financial instruments, such as credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk. Details of these risks are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

The risk factors as mentioned above are not exhaustive
or comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to thereto which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material at this
moment but could turn out to be material in the future.
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RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December
2023 and the Group’s financial position as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 103 to 219 of this annual report.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

On 31 March 2023, the Board has resolved to declare
a final dividend of HK$0.026 per share of the Company
to the Shareholders, but the resolution to declare
a final dividend was not approved by Shareholders
at the annual general meeting held on 19 June
2023. Therefore, no final dividend has been paid to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Due to the relatively high gearing ratio of the Group
and the need to reserve funds to repay debts to reduce
financial expenses, improve the value of the Company
and shareholder returns in the long-term, the Board
has resolved on 28 March 2024 not to declare a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held on Thursday, 20 June 2024 (the
“AGM”). A notice convening the AGM will be published
and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner
prescribed by the Listing Rules in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
in the following periods during which day no transfer
of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) will be
registered:

from Monday, 17 June 2024 to Thursday, 20 June
2024 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and to
vote at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 14 June 2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 220 of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s securities listed on the Stock Exchange.

SHARES ISSUED

No Share was issued during the year. Details of the
Shares issued by the Company are set out in note 25(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 25(a)
to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of change in equity on page
108 of this report, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no
retained profits available for distribution. Pursuant
to the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account and the contributed surplus
account of the Company can be applied for payment
of distributions or dividends to the Shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. Accordingly, based on the
future projection of the Group’s profit and cash inflows
from operations, the credit facilities available and the
ability of the Group to obtain or renew bank loans and
other financing facilities, the Directors believes that
the Group will generate sufficient cash flows to meet
its liabilities as and when fall due in the next twelve
months. Accordingly, the Directors determined that
the distributable reserves of the Company (including
share premium, contributed surplus and accumulated
losses of the Company) as at 31 December 2023 was
RMB303,851,000 (2022: RMB310,205,000).

DONATIONS

There was no donation made by the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Shares.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by
the Company during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company does not have any share option scheme
as at 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, 91.30% and
95.66% of the Group’s revenue were attributable to
the largest customer and the five largest customers
of the Group, and 39.46% and 100% of the Group’s
purchase (not including purchases of capital nature)
were attributable to the largest supplier and the only
four suppliers of the Group.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholders, who to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company, had any interest
in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. GUAN Dayuan (Chairman)
(appointed on 4 March 2024)

Mr. XU Anliang (Chairman)
(retired on 4 March 2024)

Mr. WEI Junyong

Non-executive Director
Mr. YUAN Feng (appointed on 4 March 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. TSE Chi Man

Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the Senior
Management are set out on pages 29 to 34 of this
annual report.

RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company after such
appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting
of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

Details of the retiring Directors to be re-elected at the
AGM will be set out in circular to the Shareholders to
be despatched prior to the AGM.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary
of its holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary
of its holding companies was a party or were parties
and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of
the Directors was interested in any business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-
election at the AGM has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries that is not
determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is subject to review by
the Remuneration Committee and the Board from time
to time with reference to the Directors’ performance,
experience, duties and responsibilities, the prevailing
market conditions of the industry and the Group’s
remuneration policy, operating performance and
profitability with the approval from the Board. Details of
the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year, the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group comprises five individuals.
Details of the highest paid individuals are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section
467 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2023. In addition, the Company has taken out and
kept in force appropriate directors’ liabilities insurance
coverage for the Directors and senior managements of
the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, to the knowledge of the
Company, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company (“Chief Executive”) or any of their
spouses or children under 18 years old had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be: (i) notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and
Chief Executive were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); (ii) entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or Chief Executive,
as at 31 December 2023, the following persons (other
than a Director or a Chief Executive) had, or were
taken or deemed to have interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which are required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of shares/ Percentage of

Capacity/ underlying shares issued share
Name of Shareholder Nature of interests held (ote capital
8515/ FR¥FRe {7 tHRA HERITRE
REATE EmitE iR in &g M= Bt
Puxing International Beneficial interest 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
2 R BamiEm
Anergy International 2 Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
corporation
7o A [ R (E2) REEEER
Wanxiang Group M°te? Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
corporation
BoER W) REEEER
Mr. Lu Weiding (“Mr. Lu”) (ote2 Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
corporation
BREREAYE ((BELE)) We2 REEEER
Ms. Li Lj (oted) Interest of spouse 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
FEE 1 e BBt
BC Greater China Opportunities Beneficial interest 35,122,000 (L) 7.66%
Fund SPC - BC New Energy
Fund SP (“BC Fund SPC”)
WERPERBEES BamEm
—BC New Energy Fund SP
(TBC Fund SPC )
BC Capital Group Limited Mote 4 Interests in a controlled 35,122,000 (L) 7.66%
corporation
BC Capital Group Limited @& SEEE R
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Notes:

FEHRS

The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the
Shares.

These Shares are held by Puxing International, which is owned as
to 100% by Anergy International, which is owned as to 100% by
Wanxiang Group which in turn is ultimately controlled by Mr. Lu.
Therefore, Anergy International, Wanxiang Group and Mr. Lu are
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Puxing International.

Ms. Li Li is the spouse of Mr. Lu and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the said Shares in which Mr. Lu is deemed to be
interested.

These Shares are held by BC Fund SPC. BC Fund SPC is owned as
to 100% by BC Asset Management Limited, which in turn is owned
as to 100% by BC Capital Group Limited. BC Capital Group Limited
is owned as to 68% by Fullsun International Capital Limited.

The approximate percentage of shareholding interest in the
Company is calculated based on the total number of 458,600,000
shares in issue as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified by any other persons (other than Directors or
Chief Executives) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which are required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2023.
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TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LISTING RULES

During the year, the Group conducted certain
related party transactions as set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements. Some of
these transactions constitute “continuing connected
transactions” (“CCT”) as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of the CCT are summarised
below:

NON-EXEMPT CCT

Set out below is information in relation to the non-
exempt CCT of the Group, particulars of which
were previously disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 22 January 2020, the circular
of the Company dated 21 February 2020 and the
announcement of the Company dated 30 March 2022.
Full text of the announcements and circular can be
found in the “Announcements and Circulars” under the
“Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website.

1. On 22 January 2020, the Company entered
into the Financial Services Agreement with
Wanxiang Finance pursuant to which Wanxiang
Finance agreed to provide certain financial
services, including, inter alia, deposit services
to the Group in accordance with the terms and
conditions set out in the Financial Services
Agreement. According to the Financial Services
Agreement, the aggregate maximum daily
deposit balance (including interests) maintained
by the Group with Wanxiang Finance should not
exceed RMB170,000,000 for each of the three
years ended 31 December 2022.
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2. On 30 March 2022, the Company entered into
the New Financial Services Agreement with
Wanxiang Finance pursuant to which Wanxiang
Finance agreed to provide certain financial
services, including, inter alia, deposit services
to the Group in accordance with the terms and
conditions set out in the Financial Services
Agreement. According to the Financial Services
Agreement, the aggregate maximum daily
balance (including interests) maintained by the
Group with Wanxiang Finance should not exceed
RMB250,000,000 for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2025.

As at the date of signing of the Financial Services
Agreement, Wanxiang Finance was a subsidiary
of Wanxiang Group. Since Wanxiang Group was a
collective-owned enterprise and the composition of a
majority of the board of directors of Wanxiang Group
was controlled by Mr. Lu (being the ultimate controlling
shareholder indirectly interested in approximately
65.42% of the issued share capital of the Company),
the Company understood that Mr. Lu was the actual
controller of Wanxiang Group. Accordingly, Wanxiang
Group and Wanxiang Finance, both being associates
of Mr. Lu, were connected person of the Company.
Therefore, the transactions contemplated under the
Financial Services Agreement constituted CCT of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and were subject to reporting, announcement, annual
review and the independent Shareholders’ approval.

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 8 September 2021, due to the changes on the
shareholder structure of the Company on 3 September
2021, Wanxiang Group became the ultimate controlling
company of the Company, and the transactions
contemplated under the Financial Services Agreement
continually constituted CCT of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and were subject to
same reporting and disclosure requirements.
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The aggregate maximum daily balance (including
interests) maintained by the Group with Wanxiang
Finance during the year ended 31 December
2023 was approximately RMB144,644,000 (2022:
RMB168,598,000).

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”), has
reviewed the CCT and confirmed that the CCT were:

(i)

(ii

(i)

entered into by the Group in its ordinary and
usual course of businesses;

conducted on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable than those available to
or from independent third parties; and

entered into in accordance with the agreements
governing the CCT on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole.

The Board, including the INEDs, also confirmed that:

(i)

(i

the aggregate maximum daily balance (including
interests) maintained by the Group with
Wanxiang Finance during the year ended 31
December 2023 did not exceed the annual cap
amount of RMB250,000,000 as disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 30 March 2022;
and

the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
abovementioned CCT in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (revised),
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits and
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (revised), “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Company’s auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
CCT of the Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

Other transactions as set out in the section headed
“Related Party Transactions” in note 28(a) to the
consolidated financial statements constituted CCT of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
and were fully exempt from the Shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements under
Rules 14A.90 and 14A.95 of the Listing Rules.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float as required under the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this annual report.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) has reviewed the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, there
are no significant events occurred after the end of
the reporting period and up to the date of this annual
report.

AUDITORS

KPMG retired and, being eligible, offered themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of
KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at
the AGM. There has been no change in auditors of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

WEI Junyong
Executive Director

28 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high
standards of corporate governance to maximise
operational efficiency, corporate values and
Shareholders’ returns. The Company has adopted and
applied the principles of the code provisions of the CG
Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.
The Company will continue to upgrade its internal
control system, strengthen its risk management and
reinforce its corporate governance structure.

The Company has complied with the code provisions
and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended
best practices set out in the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2023, except for the
temporary failure to meet the requirements for a short
period of time of C.6.4 of the CG Code and Rules 3.05
and 3.28 of the Listing Rules as set out below:

On 17 February 2023, Mr. Lai Chi Fung ceased to be (i)
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”); and (i) an Authorised Representative. As a
result, the Company temporarily failed to comply with
the requirements as set out in C.6.4 of the CG Code
and Rules 3.05 and 3.28 of the Listing Rules.

On 13 September 2023, Mr. Wei Junyong has
been appointed as an Authorised Representative.
Following with Mr. Wei Junyong’s appointment, the
Company restored to comply with the requirement
under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules, which stipulates
that every listed issuer shall appoint two authorised
representatives who shall act at all times as the listed
issuer’s principal channel of communication with the
Stock Exchange.
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On 14 December 2023, Mr. Chung Ming Fai has been
appointed as the Company Secretary. Following with
Mr. Chung Ming Fai’s appointment, the Company
restored to comply with the requirements of C.6.4 of
the CG Code and Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, which
respectively stipulate that (i) all directors should have
access to the advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board procedures, and all
applicable law, rules and regulations, are followed;
and (i) a listed issuer must appoint as its company
secretary an individual who, in the opinion of the Stock
Exchange, is capable of discharging the functions of
company secretary of the listed issuer by virtue of his/
her academic or professional qualifications or relevant
experience.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct in
respect of the Directors’ and relevant employees’
dealings in the securities of the Company on terms no
less than the required standard set out in the Model
Code.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors
regarding the compliance with the Code of Conduct.
All Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Code of Conduct
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS £Fg
Board Composition EEgEMK
Executive Directors Q 9 Non-executive Director Q Independeqt . e
HiTEE TR E noE-exeg_utlve Directors
BIJEITES
Gender
,I.igu Male %/l\i
6 Directors 685
Ethnicit
Eﬁ%—mc' / Chinese HE
6 Directors 6485
A
Egﬁgfﬂ%ﬁ”p 50 - 55 56 - 60
2 Director 2S5 1 Director 1% 5 3 Directors 3% E %
Directorship with the Company
RN [ EE Y <2 6-10

(Number of years)
(FER)

Corporate operations
and business
development skills

TREEERETERTAE

Energy industry
experience
AERIT A B

2 Director 2% &% 1 Director 12E % 3 Directors 3% E 5
Executive
management and

Audit and financial
i f Board management experience
leadership skills el L by
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THEEREEREE
Economics, finance

and engineering

Mainland market

expertise expertise
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EXENHE
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The Board currently comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. GUAN Dayuan (Chairman)
Mr. WEI Junyong

Non-excutive Director
Mr. YUAN Feng

INEDs

Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Board’s composition demonstrates a balance
of core competence with regard to the business of
the Group so as to provide effective leadership and
the requisite expertise to the Group. There are three
INEDs and at least one of them possesses appropriate
professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules. The INEDs represent at least
one-third of the Board as required by rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. The executive Directors and the Senior
Management have extensive management experience
in the Company’s business.

The biographical details of the Directors and the
Senior Management are set out in the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 29 to 34
of this annual report, which demonstrate a diversity of
skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.
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The Board and the Management

The Board, who is responsible for leadership and
control of the Group, is entrusted with the responsibility
to supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group’s
strategic development, business plans, financial
objectives, capital investment proposals, and assumes
the responsibilities of the ESG of the Group. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing
the daily operations of the Group’s business to the
executive Directors and the Management in which the
Management should report back or obtain prior Board
approval. Management for the purpose of this report
refers to the Senior Management whose biographical
details are disclosed in this annual report, and all
general managers, deputy general managers and
departmental heads. Management is responsible for the
day-to-day operations, management and administration
of the Group under the leadership of the executive
Directors. They also execute and implement strategies
and directions determined by the Board. Management
may be invited to attend Board meetings to report
and engage in discussion with the Board in respect of
strategy, budget planning, progress and performance
updates. This is to ensure that the Board can have
a general understanding of the Group’s business so
that they can make informed decisions for the benefit
of the Group. Management is required to answer
any questions or challenges posed by the Board. All
Directors have separate and independent access to the
Management whenever necessary.
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Mechanisms to Ensure Independent Views and
Input are Available to the Board

During the year, after reviewing the structure and
composition of the Board, as well as the qualifications,
dedications, participation, and contributions of each
independent director, the Board of the Company hereby
unanimously confirms that the current mechanisms of
the Company can ensure independent views and input
are available to the Board continuously.

The current channels to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board of the Company mainly
include:

The Board shall comprise at least half of the
independent directors, and each independent
director actively participates in the Board
meetings of the Company and the meetings and
affairs of the subordinate board committees, fully
expressing their independent views and opinions;
and

According to the service contract of each
Director, each Director (including independent
directors) may, when necessary, engage external
legal or other professional consultants to obtain
independent views.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Under code provision C.2.1 of part 2 of the CG Code,
the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Chairman and the Chief Executive (i.e.
the general manager of the Company) are separately
held by Mr. Guan Dayuan and Mr. Wei Junyong,
respectively.

The Chairman provides leadership to, and oversee
the functioning of, the Board to ensure that it acts
in the best interests of the Group, and the Chief
Executive has the overall responsibility for carrying out
the strategy and direction set by the Board and for
managing the Group’s business.

Board Meetings

The Board meets approximately quarterly and on other
occasions when warranted by circumstances. During
the year, the Board held seven meetings, of which four
were regular Board meetings. Notices for regular Board
meetings are given to each Director at least fourteen
days prior to the meeting whereby the Directors can
put forward their proposed items into the agenda.
The agenda and the relevant Board papers are then
circulated to the Directors at least three days before the
Board meeting in order to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions.

In addition to regular Board meetings, under code
provision C.2.7 of part 2 of the CG Code, the Chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with INEDs
without the presence of other Directors (the “Chairman
and INEDs Meeting”). During the year, a Chairman and
INEDs Meeting was held.
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Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance EEREREEHEBR
Details of the Directors’ attendance at the Company’s EEHEERBTHATIREAZT BEFZ
general meetings, the meetings of the Board, the Audit BERZEZEE - FNEEERIELEETER
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the REEREBIUIIFNTESZZNFIBEHT
Nomination Committee and the Chairman and INEDs wr
meeting held during the year are set out below:
Audit Remuneration Nomination Chairman
General Board Committee Committee Committee and INEDs
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EERARIL
EX® EBRZET HFMWEZEE€ 2 RAZET  FROTES
RRAE L L 2L L e
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. GUAN Dayuan
(appointed with effect
from 4 March 2024) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
”ﬂ??ﬁi
(RZ2ZmE
~“ENAEZE) ~BA ~EA B ~EA ~EH EN il
Mr. Xu Anliang
(retired with effect from 4 March 2024) 1/2 5/7 N/A 11 11 11
HREREE
(RZZFZMNE=FNHEML TEA
Mr. WEI Junyong 2/2 77 N/A N/A N/A N/A
BOERE NEF NiEF BB NiEF
Non-executive Director
EHITESR
Mr. YUAN Feng
(appointed with effect
from 4 March 2024) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
ﬁ)é?aéE
(RZZZmE
_HEE%@E) ~ER TEA TEA ~ER TEA ~EA
INEDs
BIEHTES
Mr. TSE Chi Man 2/2 s 2/2 11 N/A 11
#ENEE BB
Mr. YAO Xianguo
2 SETe
Mr. YU Wayne W.
ARBREE
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TEERHRS

Relationship amongst Directors

There are no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships amongst the Board
members and in particular, between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive.

Non-executive Directors

The term of appointment of all non-executive Directors
(including INEDs) are three years, subject to early
termination in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, Listing Rules or applicable laws and
regulations. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors (including non-
executive Directors) are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
at least once every three years.
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Independence of INEDs

All INEDs, namely Mr. Tse Chi Man, Mr. Yao Xianguo
and Mr. Yu Wayne W., have served the Board for
over nine years. While this could be relevant to the
determination of independence of the relevant INEDs,
it is well-recognised that an individual’s independence
cannot be determined arbitrarily on the basis of a
set period of time. In assessing the independence of
the INEDs, the Board and the Nomination Committee
considered the individual Directors’ character, integrity
and judgement as demonstrated by their commitment
and contribution to the Board during their years of
service and their willingness to continuously exercise
their independent judgement and to provide the
Company with their objective views. The Board and the
Nomination Committee are of the view that there is no
indication or evidence that the length of their services
has any adverse impact on their independence and the
Company has benefited greatly from their contribution
and valuable insights derived from their in-depth
knowledge of the Company, and believe that their
experience and skills can bring valuable contribution
to the diversity of the Board. In determining the
independence of the INEDs, the Board and the
Nomination Committee followed the guidelines as set
out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
received confirmation of independence pursuant to the
factors set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the INEDs, namely Mr. Tse Chi Man, Mr. Yao
Xianguo and Mr. Yu Wayne W., and concluded that all
INEDs are independent.

Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Upon appointment to the Board, each new Directors
receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
package to ensure that he understands the business
and operations of the Group and is sufficiently aware of
his responsibility and obligation under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

TEELRS

BIFRTEFNRILME

ERBIUIFNITES ENHETE  thkEH
TERMBELEE) EREFTERFANSE
HAEMrEREEEMBIUIFNTESNE
YEBR EER A TBBILIEFEREER
BRERPARBE -EFEBIIFATES
WBIMER EFERIELEESTE E @)
EENRBEHRANRESTEFHNAENT
BRSSP 2 33 RO ME M ~ 515 R FU B > DA Ho A
BOEBILAE N RAEATDRERESE
BEHNER B REREZEERR I
BENBRUBERBERBERHHEBUEES
EEAMEE MREFNEMRREHEER
BRATHEMEHNEERNREAT T mEE
BN ERRENERRRENAETE N
EZTEHEREESNEM - EFERERLE
EgBE L THARRE3. 13RI EIE S| 2R A
BUIERITEFNBUM - ARFERE R
BIUIFRITESE RIS E B E
RerRIESLE) BB EHARRE3AMRPAE R
AFERBI IR WSR2 RE IR
WTESRHIRBILAL

EFNREERER

REZEMAESTER SFEEFITER
E2EEXREROARBEI LRERET
AEBEXEBREE URAEDHBEAE LT

RAREFAEEREER THEEMNES -

AB) | cE-=EEERS




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERHRS

During the year and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company has appointed Mr. Guan
Dayuan as executive Director, chairman of the Board,
chairman of the Nomination Committee, Member
of the Remuneration Committee and authorised
representative, and Mr. Yuan Feng as non-executive
Director, with effective from 4 March 2024. Mr. Xu
Anliang retired as executive Director and chief executive
officer with effective from 4 March 2024. On 31
January 2024, Mr. Guan Dayuan and Mr. Yuan Feng
confirmed their understanding of their responsibilities
as directors of listed issuers under Rule 3.09D (as
amended and effective as at 31 December 2023) of the
Listing Rules after receiving relevant legal advice from a
law firm qualified to provide advice on Hong Kong law.

The Directors are kept informed on the developments
of the statutory and regulatory regime, and the changes
in the business markets so as to facilitate them to fulfil
their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuous
briefings and professional development for Directors
will be arranged by the Company when considered
necessary.
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During the year, the Company has coordinated training
courses for the Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. According
to the records provided by the Directors, the Directors
participated in the following continuous professional
development (“CPD”) during the year:

TEELRS

FRARFERBELTRAKEREER
ERBEFRZHEINIRE - BBREFRHENT
BOEERFRNSHAUTHERZXER (IF
BEXEERE))

Type of CPD
FESX L RER
Reading
materials
Attending relevant to the
training Company or

courses its business

[y /NG|

EEBHER

e BB

Mr. XU Anliang T = 4 4
Mr. WEI Junyong MHEBRE 4 v
Mr. TSE Chi Man HEXLE 4 4
Mr. YAO Xianguo ko Bl ST &= 4 4
Mr. YU Wayne W. AIEIE S v 4
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TEERHRS

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established three board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board
Committees”). The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website. Members
of the Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to fulfil their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

Audit Committee
The current members of the Audit Committee are:

Mr. TSE Chi Man (Chairman)
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

All members of the Audit Committee are INEDs, and at
least one of them possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or sufficient accounting and financial
management expertise and experience to fulfil his
duties.
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The Audit Committee serves as a focal point of
communication between the Directors, the external
auditors and the internal auditors with regards to
their duties relating to financial and other reporting,
risk management, internal controls, external and
internal audits and assisting the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities by providing independent review and
supervision of financial reporting, and by satisfying
itself as to the effectiveness of the internal controls of
the Group and as to the adequacy of the external and
internal audits.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two
meetings. The attendance records are set out under
the section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report.
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TEERHRS

At the meetings, the Audit Committee performed,
inter alia, the following: (i) confirmed and approved the
terms of employment and remuneration of KPMG for
the year 2022; (ii) confirmed and agreed to the report
on the audit plan and strategy submitted by KPMG
for the year ended 31 December 2022; (iii) reviewed
the independence of KPMG and the effectiveness
of its audit procedures; (iv) reviewed the preliminary
draft annual result announcement of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year 2022, and reported
its recommendations to the Board; (v) considered
and reviewed the effectiveness of all major monitoring
(including financial monitoring, operational monitoring,
and compliance monitoring) of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 December 2022, and reported its
recommendations to the Board; (vi) reviewed and
made recommendation to the Board on the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit, and financial reporting
functions; (vii) considered and made recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of KPMG as
the auditors of the Company, and reviewed the
effectiveness of pre—agreed non-audit services to
be provided by the auditors without communicating
with the Audit Committee and obtaining separate
consent for each service; (viii) reviewed and confirmed
the CCT of the Company and reported to the Board
in accordance with Rule 55 of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules; and (ix) reviewed the draft interim results
announcement and draft interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2023 of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) and reported its
recommendations to the Board.

Re-appointment of external auditors

On 28 March 2024, having reviewed the work,
independence and objectivity of KPMG, the external
auditors of the Company, the Audit Committee has
satisfied with them, and therefore recommended the
re-appointment of KPMG (who have indicated their
willingness to continue in office) as the external auditors
of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2024
for the Board’s approval. The Board has concurred
with the recommendation from the Audit Committee
on the re-appointment of the external auditors and will
propose the same for Shareholders’ approval at the
AGM.
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Remuneration Committee

The current members of the Remuneration Committee
are:

Mr. YAO Xianguo (Chairman)
Mr. GUAN Dayuan
Mr. TSE Chi Man

The Remuneration Committee is made up of two
INEDs and the Chairman, and is chaired by an INED.
The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
in relation to the remuneration packages and benefits
of the Directors and the Senior Management to ensure
that the relevant individuals are fairly rewarded in light
of their contribution to the Company with reference
to their performance, and that they receive suitable
incentives to maintain high standards of performance
and to improve the Group’s and their own performance,
and to review and/or approve matters relating to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. and
to improve the Group’s and their own performance.
In connection with the review of the remuneration
package, no Director shall be involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. The attendance record is set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report.

At the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
performed, inter alias, the following: (i) discussed
and reviewed the overall remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and Senior Management and
recommended to the Board; (ii) discussed and reviewed
the performance of executive Directors and Senior
Management and recommended to the Board; (iii)
discussed and reviewed the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and Senior Management
and recommended to the Board; (iv) discussed and
reviewed the terms of service contracts of executive
Directors and Senior Management and recommended
to the Board; (v) discussed and reviewed the
terms of service contracts for retired Directors and
recommended to the Board.
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TEERHRS

Remuneration paid to the Senior Management

Remuneration paid to the Senior Management for the
year ended 31 December 2023 by band are as follows:

X FEREENBBIFHH

BE_ T =ZH+"A=+—HLEEXH
TEREBEAENHINEEIT

Number of

staff

BT AE

HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 =3B 51,000,000 7T 1

None of the Senior Management held any share
interests of the Company during the year.

Nomination Committee

The current members of the Nomination Committee
are:

Mr. GUAN Dayuan (Chairman)
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Nomination Committee is made up of two INEDs
and the Chairman, and is chaired by the Chairman.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for, amongst other things, (i) reviewing the Board’s
diversity policy and the measurable objectives set by
the Board for implementing the Board’s diversity policy
annually, and making recommendations to the Board
on any proposed changes to the Board according
to the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors; (iii) identifying individuals suitable
to be qualified as Board members; (iv) assessing the
independence of INEDs annually; and (v) deciding
whether or not a Director is able to and has adequately
carried out his duties as a Director.
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Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy
setting out the approach to the diversification of Board
members. The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of diversity of Board members. It endeavours
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skKills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirement of the Company’s business. The Board
will continue to apply the principle of appointments
on a merit basis with due regards for the benefits of
diversity of the Board members as a whole. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision
will be made upon the merits and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
Board realised that the Company currently has a
single gender Board, and is committed to achieve
gender diversity of the Board by increasing at least
one female director before the end of year 2024
according to the nomination policy of the Company. At
the end of the reporting period, the gender ratio of all
employees (including Senior Management) of the Group
was 75.69% male: 24.31% female. The Company
is committed to maintaining gender diversity among
employees and providing them with an equal work
environment and opportunities.
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Nomination Policy

The Group has adopted a nomination policy which is
disclosed as below:

1. Objective

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Nomination Committee assists the
Board in making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of Directors, and
succession planning for Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate
suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to
the Shareholders for election as Directors at
general meetings or appoint as Directors to
fill casual vacancies.

The nomination policy provides the key
selection criteria and principles of the
Nomination Committee in making such
recommendations.

2. Selection Criteria

2.1

When making recommendations regarding
the appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall consider a
variety of factors including without limitation
the following in assessing the suitability of
the proposed candidate:

(@) Reputation for integrity;

(b) Commitment in respect of sufficient
time and relevant interests;
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(c) Diversity in all aspects, including but
not limited to gender, ethnicity, age,
cultural and educational background,
professional experience, industrial
experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

(d) The strength of the candidate and the
contributions that can be made to the
Board;

(e) Compliance with the criteria of
independence as prescribed under
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the
appointment of INED; and

(f)  Any other relevant factors as may
be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to
time, as considered appropriate.

The appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board shall be
made in accordance with the Company’s
Article of Association, the laws of the
Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and other
applicable rules and regulations.

3. Nomination Procedures

3.1

In the context of appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will deploy multiple
channels for identifying suitable director
candidates, including without limitation
referral from Directors, Shareholders,
Management, advisers of the Company and
external executive search firms or through
internal promotion of senior employees.
The Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such
individual and make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval.

2.2
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3.2

3.3

3.4

In the context of re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will review the overall
contribution to the Company of the retiring
Directors and also determine whether the
retiring Directors continue to meet the
selection criteria set out in the nomination
policy. The Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election
at a general meeting.

For the procedures for Shareholders’
nomination of any proposed candidate
for election as a Director, please refer to
“Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director” set out in
“Corporate Governance” under the “Investor
Relations” section of the Company’s website.

The Board shall have the final decision on
all matters relating to its recommendation of
candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.

Approval and Review of the Nomination

Policy

The nomination policy has been approved by the
Board. The Nomination Committee will review this
policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness
of this policy. Any subsequent amendment of
the nomination policy shall be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee and approved by the
Board.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting. The attendance record is set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee performed,
inter alias, the following: (i) assessed the independence
of INEDs; (i) considered re-electing Directors; (iii)
reviewed the structure, size, and composition of the
Board of the Company (including skills, knowledge, and
experience), and considered the nomination of a new
independent director by the Nomination Committee to
the Board.

Nomination of Candidates

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the Board’s composition and nominated Mr. Wei
Junyong and Mr. Tse Chi Man to the Board for it to
recommend to the Shareholders for re-election at
the annual general meeting held at 19 June 2028.
The nomination was made after taken into account
the respective contribution of the retiring Directors
to the Board and the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
the retiring Directors, with due regard for the benefits of
Board diversity.
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TEERHRS

Corporate Governance Functions

During the year, the Board has carried out its duties
and responsibilities as set out in code provision A.2.1
of part 2 of the CG Code including (i) developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; (ii) reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and the Senior Management; (iii)
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to the employees of the
Company and the Directors (if any); and (v) reviewing
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the
disclosure in this report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flows in the
relevant financial year. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies, applied them consistently in accordance with
appropriate International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards and the related
interpretations, and made adjustments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB284,999,000. In view of
the circumstance, the Directors have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and performance
of the Group and its available sources of finance
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.
Based on the future projection of the Group’s profit
and cash inflows from operations, the credit facilities
available and the ability of the Group to obtain or renew
bank loans and other financing facilities, the Directors
believe that the Group will generate sufficient cash
flows to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due
in the next twelve months. Accordingly, the Directors
consider that there are no material uncertainties related
to the events or conditions which, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors to the
Shareholders are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 93 to 102 of this annual report.
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TEERHRS

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION % BN &
During the year, the Company’s auditor, KPMG, TR ARBEZEMEEH SN EHE
provided to the Company the following services: KABIREU TR ¢
RMB’000
ARETR
Audit service E%‘I‘HE?%
Review of 2023 interim financial report, audit =R ::E':F'HH MRS BZ
of financial statements for the year ended 31 BHE_ZE_=4#+"H=+—H
December 2023 and review of preliminary results EEERW ﬁﬁ‘“%ﬁ%ﬂi&%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ*ﬁ
announcements and the CCT of the Group (XENEREAEEFERERS 1,680
Non-audit services #Ei‘fﬂﬁﬁ
Consultation services for the preparation of 2023 T _=FEE - HEEEARS
ESG report MR B AR 7S 150
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged an external professional
company, SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited (“SWCS”), as the company secretary
service provider to provide the Group with corporate
secretarial services to assist the Group in responding
to the constantly changing regulatory environment and
meeting different business needs. All directors can
obtain advice and services from the company secretary
on corporate governance and Board practices and
matters.

From 14 December 2023, the representative of SWCS,
Mr. Chung Ming Fai (“Mr. Chung”), has been appointed
as the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”). Mr. Chung is a vice president
of SWCS and has over 19 years of experience in
corporate secretarial, mergers and acquisitions,
financial reporting, and auditing. Mr. Chung is currently
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of CPA Australia. With
these qualifications, Mr. Chung will be able to fulfill the
duties of the Company Secretary. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 14
December 2023.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr.
Chung has received no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year.

Mr. Zhu Kexian, the financial manager of the Company,
is the main contact person for the company secretary
of the Company and will collaborate and communicate
with Mr. Chung on corporate governance, secretarial
and administrative matters of the Company.
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TEERHRS

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Group recognises the Shareholders’ rights
in exercising control proportionate to their equity
ownership. As one of the measures to safeguard the
Shareholders’ interest and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at the Shareholder’s meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of Director(s),
for the Shareholder’s consideration and voting. All
resolutions put forward at the Shareholders’ meeting
will be voted by way of poll, which is conducted
and scrutinised by the Company’s share registrar.
An explanation in relation to the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll is provided before voting, and
questions from Shareholders on voting by poll, if any,
are answered. Poll results are announced and posted
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange'’s
website after the relevant meetings.
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Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written request to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
request; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the submission of such request. If within
twenty-one days of such submission the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, Shareholder(s) may
do so in the same manner.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
to the Board in writing to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong or by emalil
to info@puxing-enegy.com for the attention of the
secretary of the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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TEERHRS

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

Pursuant to article 85 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, no person other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a
Director at any general meeting unless a written notice
signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election and also a written
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office of the Company or at the share registrar
of the Company provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such written notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if
the written notices are submitted after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election) the period for lodgment of such written
notice(s) shall commence on the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. Accordingly, if a
Shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting of the Company wishes to propose
a person for election as a Director at the general
meeting, he/she can deposit a signed written notice
of the intention to propose a person for election as a
Director and a signed written notice by that person
of his/her willingness to be elected together with his/
her particulars (such as qualification and experience)
and information as required to be disclosed under
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules at the head office
of the Company at No.181-1 Hejiatang, Chongxian
Subdistrict, Linping District, Hangzhou 311108,
Zhejiang Province, PRC or at the share registrar of
the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong. The period for lodgment of the notices
required will commence no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting,
and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at
least seven days.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

According to the shareholders’ communication
policy, the Company currently has different platforms
and channels (including general meetings, website,
email, and telephone of the Company) allowing
the shareholders of the Company to access the
latest information, make inquiries, or express their
opinions from time to time. During the year, after
being reviewed by the Board, it was unanimously
approved and confirmed that the current shareholders’
communication policy has established different
platforms and channels for shareholders to express
their opinions and obtain the latest information
of the Company. It is unanimously believed that
the shareholders’ communication policy has been
effectively implemented and can continue to
be used.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The up-to-date consolidated version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company (in both English and Chinese) is available
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. During the year, there was no change in the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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TEERHRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board believes that effective understanding,
acceptance and management of risk is fundamental
to the long-term success of the Group. Effective
communication and consultation are essential
throughout the risk management process to enhance
the understanding of risk identification, analysis and
evaluation and to accept them in an informed way. The
Board takes the following approach to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks:

()  To understand the nature and extent of risks
facing the Group;

(i)  To accept and manage within the business those
risks which its staff have the skills and expertise to
understand and leverage;

(i)  To assess and transfer or avoid those risks which
are beyond the Group’s appetite for risk; and

(iv) By consideration of materiality, to establish
the authority levels within the Group at which
decisions on acceptance and mitigation of these
risks are taken.
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Risk Management Framework

The diagram below summarises the Board’s
complementary approach based on utilising a top-
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“Top-down”
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enterprise level
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The Board
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o Fully responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
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. Set strategic goals
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o Review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
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o Monitor the nature and extent of the key risks of the Group
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The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of risk management and
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness,
particularly in respect of the controls of financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to
safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets. The system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. To continuously monitor the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems, the
Board reviews the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group at least
annually with the support from the Audit Committee.

Appropriate risk treatments are embedded in
daily operations. Once risk is identified, it will be
continuously monitored depending on its subsequent
risk rating and strength of controls to treat the risk.
All staff have the responsibility for the continuous
monitoring of risks and operation of controls within
their area of responsibility. In particular, close attention
has been paid to those risk areas indicating a strong
reliance on internal controls and processes to bring the
risks to an acceptable level.
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As an ongoing process, the financial management
department of the Group randomly tests the internal
control and risk management systems annually,
and reports their works and findings to the Audit
Committee. In addition, despite the external auditors
of the Company do not express any opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control, they have
obtained an understanding of internal control relevant
to their audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. The external
auditors also communicate with the Audit Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that they identify during their audit. Once any significant
deficiencies in internal control is identified and reported,
the Company will take timely remedial actions whenever
necessary.

The Group handled and disseminated inside
information in compliance with the Listing Rules and
the SFO. The Board identifies and determines whether
certain information needs to be disclosed as inside
information under the Listing Rules and the SFO with
the recommendation from the Senior Management and
the legal adviser of the Company. If an information is
determined as inside information, such information
will be disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable
by way of announcements unless the information falls
within any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO.
Before the inside information is fully disclosed, such
information will keep strictly confidential and will only
be disclosed to, and handled by, those employees who
have a genuine need to know.
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The Group has not established an internal audit
department and its internal audit function is maintained
by the financial management department of the Group
with the supervision of the Audit Committee. During the
year, the Board, as supported by the Audit Committee,
has conducted a review on the effectiveness of all
material controls of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023. Based on the review from the Audit
Committee, the Board is satisfied that, based on the
information provided and on its own observation, the
present risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate for the nature and size of
the Group’s operations and business. There was no
significant control failings or weaknesses that have
been identified during the review.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company’s dividend policy enunciated at the time
of its initial public offering in 2009 is that it will pay
approximately 20-30% of the net profit attributable to
the Shareholders as dividend. However, the payment
and amount of any dividends in the future will be at
the discretion of the Board and will depend upon
the Company’s earnings, financial conditions, cash
requirements and availability, and other factors. There
is no assurance that the amount of dividend payment
or the timing of such payment, or whether the dividend
distribution will occur as intended.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPME

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Puxing Energy Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Puxing Energy Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 219,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes, comprising material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B Z AR S

REERERMRATARKRRZ
B BEmER S
RHESHEZMATIIERAE)

ER

EMEBSHFEI103E210EMHBEEEE
Ras (TEAF)) REWEBAR (TE&£E)
WiRaMBRE BER_F_=ZF+_8
= t+—HNGEMBARRESGEZB LS
ERNGRecEaRk FoBEm kEMEEEA
R FRERDEIRNGERERNER UK
BREANGSTERE R K E ARSI
ste

KRR ZEHRE E??“%E?%E?ﬁﬁ’?.ﬁﬂﬁ
D+’EEIJEE$ (TEREEsZEBEEE)F
78 0 B [ R B 75 4R E'J (TEIR B R & %
Al EEMAAMKMTEERR _2 =
FHZ_A=+T—HZREMBRARE&E
ZHLEFEZREMBREARMMEEERM
ETEEREBRATKRANKEREELS
REo

AB) | cE-=EEERS
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together
with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on the matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

RIS AT R

Refer to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements

BB R G R B ER M AE2(b)

The Key Audit Matter
FASEEsI S8

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEANSEANAEEZER

At 31 December 2023, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB284,999,000.
RIBZ=F+"RA=+—H E&£ERHERF
%8 A\ R 1£284,999,0007T °

The directors evaluated the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern based on projections
of the Group’s profit and cash inflows from
operations and the ability of the Group to obtain or
renew bank loans and other financing facilities to
finance its continuing operations. As a result of their
assessment, the directors believe that the Group will
generate sufficient cash flows to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due in the next twelve
months and concluded that there are no material
uncertainties related to events or conditions which,
individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
EERBHEER RN REERERANTEIUKR
EEERSHNERRTERREAMREEEUSE
FEKESRHESNENLGIGEERENFELE
EN-RAGB EEZRRAEEERGELEREHNN
REneMEMERRRTZEAIHNEE I
MER R EETEEN SN ERAHEERFELE
BENBREARRBNEGIRRBEANERITETE
FSE

Our audit procedures to assess whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern included the
following:
RANBSEFEXEN LR FTERRERTETE
MNFENBERIEHEERNTESERNESE
BARRE BEUTEE:

° walking through the business planning process
and assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of management’s
internal controls over the assessment of the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern;

e HEBSIREITHETARAARTLEEREY
EEEFEKCER T ENAMBETRRE
HITREEMR ;

° comparing the future expected cash flows
in management’s cash flow forecast with
the Group’s business plan approved by the
directors;

e REEENRSRETAAPRKIEHRE TR
EHEEEKEEHENERTEEITILE ;

° comparing the available financing facilities and
arrangements with underlying documentation
and assessing the impact of any covenants
and other restrictive terms attached thereto;

s RERMBEERZIEMBRAXHETILERK
ST 1 B8 P B9 1 100 32 5% e L Ath PR 1) 14 16 5% B 75 2R
NEE;
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The Key Audit Matter
AR EstF1E

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANEANMAEEZER

We identified the assessment of the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern as a key audit
matter because the Group was in a net current
liabilities position as at 31 December 2023 which
has increased the risk that the Group may not be
able to continue to operate as a going concern and
because the assessment of the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern is dependent upon
certain management assumptions and judgements,
in particular in relation to forecasting capacity tariff,
electricity volume tariff, annual power generation
volumes and natural gas prices and in assessing the
ability of the Group to renew or obtain new financing
facilities upon expiry of the existing financing
facilities.
RMERTHEERFELENENTER—B
FRESEE BREERRN -2 -_=F+2"A4
=+—HERFRBEEART LBMTEEEH
FRERFELSEREEBCENRE > kBN T(G
EEEFERSHNENEURANEEBNE TRE
Yl CEHRTRASEEE - EEBE 2F%E
BRRAREBR UKL EEENREEREREES
FR SR B EEENENSE AE
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assessing the Group’s ability to renew or
refinance existing financing facilities upon
maturity by performing a retrospective review
of past renewal or roll-over history of financing
facilities in prior years, and inspecting loan
agreements and underlying documentation
for bank loans and other financing facilities
borrowed and repaid after year end;
FRENE RN BEFEC MEEEERNE
MENTE U EERNIBEEREGFEER
HARFETESBEME 28 /1 MBRRER
BEBAREBEMZEBTERAEMMEFEZ
ER R RAERAX G

evaluating the key assumptions adopted
by management in the preparation of the
cash flow forecast, including capacity
tariff, electricity volume tariff, annual power
generation volumes and natural gas prices by
comparing these key assumptions with the
historical performance of the power plants,
financial budgets approved by the directors
and terms of future electricity supply as agreed
with local governments;

L EEEERNEERERANMMERANE
ER% (OEREEE - EEBE 2FEES
RRAAREBR) URZEFFTEBRIREZER
NEERF -KESHENTBRERLEE M
B R R AR BHRTETLER ;




The Key Audit Matter
Bt EE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B LR S

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANEANMAEEZER

o comparing future expected cash flows
with historical data, assessing whether
any variations were consistent with our
expectations based on our understanding
of the Group’s business and considering the
accuracy and reliability of past cash flow
forecasts made by management by comparing
them with the current year’s results; and

e RARFBEHREREHEELHIBETILER 5T
GHREAERENEFH T ERMERHEEEE
Bz TERINTER UkREEEMEHNBE
HERERARSFNZEETEBUZERE
M REIEN ; &

° assessing the sensitivities of the key
assumptions adopted by management in the
going concern assessment and considering
whether management had incorporated any
bias in the selection of such assumptions.

e FMHEEERRELKENLPARANEER
HNERMREREEETEEZSERRENE
EEEEARR -

ZEREFRAT | —B-=SFERE




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RV R TR

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
pbut is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, EREBEBETEINETESFNAEARES K
we exercise professional judgement and maintain MERTHEHNEAGIFT TEENERRE
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: E o tEoh > FAFITR -

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Tse Wong Pui.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFlT OR LOSS
n\7|_ (| Tﬁ %

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE L A _HZf—HIFFE

2023 2022

—_— S

— T —— — e e—

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT EESLRT

Revenue & 513,510 753,307
Operating expenses RERX

Fuel consumption IARLHE FE (211,665) (469,318)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (90,565) (87,922)
Repairs and maintenance HEBREFEE (15,202) (15,514)
Personnel costs BT A (27,329) (27,693)
Administrative expenses THRAX (18,181) (22,201)
Sales related taxes HEMRBRIE (4,205) (4,868)
Other operating expenses HM& S (5,591) (6,230)
Profit from operations LEET 140,772 119,561
Finance income B U A 623 583
Finance expenses TR (37,501) (47,143)
Net finance costs B 75 R AN B (36,878) (46,560)
Other income HM A 3,743 3,577
Profit before taxation FR#R Fi iz AU 107,637 76,578
Income tax FTigia (36,797) (24,648)
Profit for the year FERER 70,840 51,930

AB) | cE-=EEERS




CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
n‘7|_\ j:ﬁ %%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_E S _H=F—HIFFEE

2023 2022

—E-= —E2-
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(A ARETt PNEL:RwT

Attributable to: UTEHEMN:
Equity shareholders of the Company KNBmB R 51,932
Non-controlling interests IR 2)
Profit for the year FEREF 51,930
Earnings per share skREHN
Basic (RMB) HEAX (AR 10(a) 0.113
Diluted (RMB) 8 (AR T) 10(b) 0.113
The notes on pages 111 to 219 form part of these “Hkﬁ@ﬁ%%iﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁé? TR
consolidated financial statements. Details of dividends H—ER - FBERAFERMNNEN LKA
payable to equity shareholders of the Company 7F““Hy$ﬁ B EE B E R HYEE25(d) ©
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note
25(d).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RoBEmkAMEEHRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE L A _HZf—HIFFE

2023 2022

— —_—— — =
— T —— — e e—

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fiicE QNG A KT T

Profit for the year FREH 70,840 51,930
Other comprehensive income FRHEHMZ2EWA
for the year (after tax and (MM EEHSE
reclassification adjustments): HEE)
ltems that will not be reclassified to AHEMDBEEERDN
profit or loss: U=
Exchange differences on translation 20 DN/N]
of financial statements EURCE T ESS)
of the Company beE 2 = 28 14,516
ltems that may be reclassified HEBEJEMDER
subsequently to profit or loss: BENIEE
Exchange differences on translation ME BN E AT
of financial statements of SRR )
overseas subsidiaries beE T2 = 28 (1,812) (18,534)
Total comprehensive income FAZEURALLEE
for the year 47,912
Attributable to: UTEHEML:
Equity shareholders of the Company /NS -] 47,914
Non-controlling interests R (2)
Total comprehensive income FAZEIRALLE
for the year 47,912
The notes on pages 111 to 219 form part of these FIME2NOENNEERZELR AR BRRE
consolidated financial statements. B—EL 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Ra BT R

At 31 December 2023
RIEZ=F+ZH=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= —EF-
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(A ARETt PNEL:RwT
Non-current assets JERBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME~BEREE 11 1,448,964 1,534,073
Intangible assets B EE 12 1,426 2,135
Deferred tax assets FIEFRIBE E 24(b) 6,119 8,920
Other non-current assets HMIEREE E 13 21,848 12,636
1,478,357 1,657,764

Current assets MEEE
Inventories FE 14 58,465 58,600
Trade and other receivables FEUR B 5 K Efth 718 16 62,088 73,915
Cash and cash equivalents RENIBEEEY 17 130,719 89,431
251,272 221,946

Current liabilities b =R
Shareholder’s loan REER 18 112,866 106,506
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 19 374,575 244,755
Consideration payable B (E 20 - 106,655
Trade and other payables BB 5 R EMRIE 21 25,644 24,903
Lease liabilities HEas 22 96 175
Current taxation BPHAMR I8 24(a) 23,090 21,802
536,271 504,796
Net current liabilities mEBEFEE (284,999) (282,850)
Total assets less current liabilities (AEERGHAE 1,193,358 1,274,914

The notes on pages 111 to 219 form part of these FINME2NIOBENMNEERZELR AR BRRE
consolidated financial statements. B—&8 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR B R

At 31 December 2023
RIEZ=F+ZH=+—H

2023 2022

— —— — = — —

— T —— — e e—

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fiicE QNG A KT T

Non-current liabilities ERENERE
Interest-bearing borrowings EEE 19 340,800 501,000
Lease liabilities HEas 22 - 96
Deferred revenue ‘ELH&* 23 10,694 11,094
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 24(b) 25,751 17,854
377,245 530,044

NET ASSETS BESE 816,113 744,870
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R E#E
Share capital [ 25(b) 40,149 40,149
Reserves 1 775,981 704,736
Total equity attributable to equity AT SR RE

shareholders of the Company miER 816,130 744,885
Non-controlling interests JEIERR RS (17) (15)
TOTAL EQUITY EiERE 816,113 744,870
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of KREEFFR _T_NHE-"ABA-_+NBH#fLEX
directors on 28 March 2024. e o

GUAN Dayuan WEI Junyong
EKXRE 9=
Director Director
= BZE

The notes on pages 111 to 219 form part of these FINME2IOBENNEERZELR SR HBRE
consolidated financial statements. B—Z85 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
PRy TOE:

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_E =g+ __HA=+—HIFE

Attrioutable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARIRERERE
Statutory Non-
Share Share Capital Merger surplus Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests equity
bz Riy&R EREE Al EERREE EREE RBER it FERER g
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

i3 ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTn ARKTn ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2022 RZEZZE
—-B—-RMEE 40,149 11,230 24,189 251,027 109,113 (38,091) 321,249 718,866 (13) 718,853
Changes in equity for 2022 “EICEREEY
Proft for the year ERisi] - - - - - - 51,932 51,982 2 51,930
Other comprehensive income A2 ERA - - - - - 4,018) - (4,018) - 4,018)
Total comprehensive income 2ENALE - - - - - 4,018) 51,032 47,914 2 47,012
Dividends approved and paid in BHERKH
respect of previous year HERS 25(d)(i - (11,230) - (10,665) - - - (21,895) - (21,895
Appropriation to reserves BERE 25(0)(v) - - - - 15,260 - (15,260) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2022 RZBZZE
+ZA=t+-ANER 40,149 - 24,189 240,362 124,373 (42,109) 357,921 744,885 (15) 744,870
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FRARTRREL
Statutory Non-
Share Capital Merger surplus  Translation Special Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests equity
2 Bnfif AfiE EERBHE ERHE RHRE REHH it kiR BEE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iz AERTR AERTR ARRTR ARETR ARETR ARETm ARETm ARETR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2023 RIEZZE
—-B-AEE b 24,189 240,362 124,373 (42,109) 357,921 744,885 (15) 744,870
Changes in equity for 2023 “ECCEREEY
Proft for the year ERiA - 70,842 70,842 [t] 70,840
Other comprehensive income A2 ERA 403 - 403 - 403
Total comprehensive income 2ENAEE 403 70,842 71,245 1,243
Appropriation to reserves BERE 25(c)() ! (8,822
Accrual of safety production fund B 224 EER 25(g) ! (11,354)
Utilisation of safety production fund BRZRLEER 25e) ! 8,886
Balance at 31 December 2023 RIEZZE
+ZR=t-RAMEHR ] 24,189 240,362 | (41,706) ) 474713 816,130 816,113
The notes on pages 111 to 219 form part of these FINME2NIOBENMNEERZELR AR BRRE
consolidated financial statements. B —EB 5D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE—E =g+ _HA=+—HIFE

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA AR¥ETt PNE:Rwr
Cash flows from operating activities & EBIFFISIRERE
Profit for the year FE @ F 51,930
Adjustments for: KFEIFE .
Depreciation of owned property, BEEYME - WERZE
plant and equipment e 5(c) 87,955 85,112
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEINE
— land use rights — TR A 5(c) 1,698 1,698
— other properties —Hth# == 5(c) 203 326
Amortisation of intangible assets EEEE#H 5(c) 709 786
Net finance costs B IS A AN 2 5B 5(a) 36,878 46,560
Net loss on disposal of property, BEEYE WERM
plant and equipment RBEEE 5(c) 442 481
Tax expense MBS 7(a) 36,797 24,648
235,522 211,541
Changes in working capital: EEETEE .
Decrease in inventories FE R 135 251
Decrease in trade and other U E 5 K EMzIE
receivables D 12,230 20,062
Increase in other non-current assets HMIERENE E BN (9,212) (4,212)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and BB 5 Rk EMARIE
other payables and deferred revenue LUz 30 SIE IS 23
(gm) R (22,342)
Cash generated from operating REEHFRSRE
activities 239,222 205,300
Interest paid BAFE (41,839) (39,461)
Income taxes paid B ER (24,811) (47,170)
Net cash generated from REFZHFRISHERE
operating activities 172,572 118,669
The notes on pages 111 to 219 form part of these FIME2NOENNEERZELR AR BRRE

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
rERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_E S _H=F—HIFFEE

2023 2022

—E-= —E2-
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(A ARETt PNEL:RwT

Cash flows from investing activities REZEIFIBIRENRE

Interest received B WFH 8 583
Payment for purchase of property, BEYME- -BERKE

plant and equipment NN (9,390)
Payment for purchase of EERTLEENN

intangible assets (2,537)
Net cash used in investing activities R E;ESFIAREELE (4,948) (11,344)
Cash flows from financing activities FIZE ;ZEIFFBIRENE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEERENEARRG  17() (175) (336)
Proceeds from interest-bearing S EEEMEMIAE

borrowings 17(b) 418,009 438,000
Repayment of interest-bearing BRHEEE

borrowings 17(b) (448,319) (409,750)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders ~ B {42 5 # %4 J& 5 AY

of the Company 2 25(d)(ii) - (21,895)
Payment of consideration payable FERENR 17(b) (95,851) (100,000)
Net cash used in financing activities B EBIFFARE R (126,336) (93,981)
Net increase in cash and &R EEWEM

cash equivalents FEE 13,344
Cash and cash equivalents H—B—HHNRER

at 1 January RELEEY 76,087
Cash and cash equivalents R+ZB=+—H1

at 31 December RERREEZEY 17(a) 130,719 89,431
The notes on pages 111 to 219 form part of these FINME2NIOBENMNEERZELR AR BRRE
consolidated financial statements. B —EB 5D o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

REPORTING ENTITY AND BACKGROUND
INFORMATION

Puxing Energy Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8
September 2008 under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 10 July 2009. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) are the
development, operation and management of
power plants.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Material
accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below.

mE M ERR M EE

BEERERERENR

ZERBARAR ((KAF) RZTE
NENBNBERSEERERNEES
ERB22E AT E (—HR—FEB=ZR
AR IR ERIES]) SR AR R
BERRAB - XRABARMN-ZBZBNEL
E—T—EIY_*%H?A*%FWE[SE@T (T

RPM)) ERET AR RERBAF
(BT AER) NIBXBRER K
EREEER-

BAGTHE

(a) &HEH
It 55 87 7% 3 3= 7L 12 R B PR & 5t 24
BIEEE ((HEZErEAEEE))
FTiafmey 228 AR H RS
ZR (TERMBHRESER » BF
Fﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁZ@BU@%ﬂ?%%E%iﬁE
B - EE et 2R (TEE et
a11) Ezﬁ%%) K& B BRI B9 IR
BHRETRE LETBRERITTE
B2z Fr B3R AN (T E#R AL 895
BIRER X AEEBRMNNERE
FTBERTE TR EE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7r\

CLECE eSS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(e) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB284,999,000 (31
December 2022: RMB282,850,000). In view
of this circumstance, the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available
sources of finance in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient financial resources
to continue as a going concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MBI MIEE

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

Based on the future projection of the Group’s
profit and cash inflows from operations,
the unused revolving loan credit facilities of
RMB157.4 million as at 31 December 2023
granted by Wanxiang Finance Co., Ltd.
(“Wanxiang Finance”), a fellow subsidiary of
the Company, and the ability of the Group
to obtain or renew bank loans and other
financing facilities from related parties,
including Wanxiang Finance, the Directors
believe that the Group will generate sufficient
cash flows to meet its liabilities as and when
they fall due in the next twelve months.
Accordingly, the Directors consider that
there are no material uncertainties related
to events or conditions which, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is the functional
currency of the Group’s subsidiaries located
in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). All financial information presented
in RMB has been rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated.
The functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”).

2 BAREFER #

(b)

(c)

MBBRZGHREE (2

REHAER RGN REEIR
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RITNABRARBRREREERS
ARB157 AR TUREERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HEAGFHEK #@
(Continued)
(d) Use of judgements and estimates (d) 156 FE i R (i 5t

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

In applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made judgements about
the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, which is considered to have the
most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. Further information is set out in
note 2(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
(Continued)

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:

(i) Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual
value.

Management reviews annually the
useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there
are significant changes from previous
estimates.

(ii) Impairment of property, plant and
equipment
The Group tests whether property, plant
and equipment suffered any impairment
whenever an impairment indication
exists. In accordance with note 2(k)(ii),
an impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. It is reasonably possible,
based on existing knowledge, that
outcomes within the next financial period
that are different from assumptions
could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- ?ﬁ $E % Mj- DI

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

BEAGHER #

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
(Continued)

(iii) Recognition of deferred tax assets

(d) GERFIERR &t (&

(i) AEFE IR E E BT

Deferred tax assets in respect of
unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences are recognised
and measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the
assets, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. In determining
the carrying amounts of deferred tax

PMAREARIEEE R AR
UREBENELERBEEET
BRESEEREENHRAZR
y:\ﬂ%ﬁ_tﬁﬁwu g‘l’% 4 »LX%&
STHAREBERXIERERN
MESFE - BEELEREAEE
AREER > S5t FRAAE R
MR %$5$7§2E§ﬁ"$%@
EERENZHERR LHRE
EEFHEEZENHIE-

assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of
assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and require a
significant level of judgment exercised
by the directors.

(e) Changes in accounting policies (e) BBREE
New and amended IFRSs FETRASIESTEIPR R FE 3R & E R
The Group has applied the following new and AEEBCMEMNGSHABENILEE

amended IFRSs issued by the IASB to these
financial statements for the current

MHRRERB T HERG S E
AIEEEBEMIMNE] REETE

accounting period: PREFFER S 2R ¢
e IFRS 17, Insurance contracts o BEIEMBREENFI7R F
/‘/(»« D/:7
e Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting e FREEHERFEER ZIES]
policies, changes in accounting N EEE  BEHE 5 EE)
estimates and errors: Definition of RERE | B BEIHNTEE

accounting estimates
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- i‘z $E %E Iﬂj- I:II

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBAEHHE &
(Continued)
(e) Changes in accounting policies (e) EBHREE &
(Continued)

New and amended IFRSs (Continued)

° Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements and IFRS Practice
Statement 2, Making materiality
Judgements. Disclosure of accounting
policies

° Amendments to IAS 12, /ncome
taxes.: Deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

° Amendments to IAS 12, /ncome taxes:
International tax reform - Pillar Two
model rules

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period. Impacts of the
adoption of the new and amended IFRSs are
discussed below:

IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

IFRS 17, which replaces IFRS 4, sets out the
recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure requirements applicable to issuers
of insurance contracts. The standard does
not have a material impact on these financial
statements as the Group does not have
contracts within the scope of IFRS 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- ?ﬁ $E % M_.I- DI

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HBARIHHEK &
(Continued)
(e) Changes in accounting policies (e) BEHBREE &
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting
policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors: Definition of
accounting estimates

The amendments provide further guidance
on the distinction between changes
in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates. The amendments do
not have a material impact on these financial
statements as the Group’s approach in
distinguishing changes in accounting policies
and changes in accounting estimates is
consistent with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements and IFRS Practice
Statement 2, Making materiality
judgements: Disclosure of accounting
policies

The amendments require entities to disclose
material accounting policy information and
provide guidance on applying the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosure.
The Group has revisited the accounting
policy information it has been disclosing
and considered it is consistent with the
amendments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- i‘z $E %E Iﬂj- I:II

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBAEHHE &
(Continued)
(e) Changes in accounting policies (e) EBHREE &
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12, Income
taxes: Deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exemption such that it does
not apply to transactions that give rise to
equal and offsetting temporary differences
on initial recognition such as leases and
decommissioning liabilities. For leases and
decommissioning liabilities, the associated
deferred tax assets and liabilities are required
to be recognised from the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as
an adjustment to retained earnings or other
components of equity at that date. For
all other transactions, the amendments
are applied to those transactions that
occur after the beginning of the earliest
period presented. The amendments do not
have a material impact on these financial
statements.

EPRE st ER 1252 BT AF
T E—XGHELEERE
BRI RTAE L IR

ZAER] A MRV 18 FE SR A R B $E
B EEABRREGESEE
EHEFHAEEZEREEEN
*% PIMNEE Kk 815 - il
ERGREEMS  HRELERE
EERGBEARRRIKRNALL
WHIEAA)REEY > MERRBERER
7] B b 58 7% ¥ 1R & & B 50 H 1
mAE AL ED 3 BUEREE o BLFT A EMth 32
SME > ?16DTZIK@%EAT_WE§'J
RAERRBRELENZSTR S
B 5] 45 b 2 ¥ 5% ﬁﬁﬁ?%&?@LﬁE
BEATE-

AB) | cE-=EEERS




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- ?ﬁ $E % Mj- DI

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HBARIHHEK &
(Continued)
(e) Changes in accounting policies (e) BEHBREE &
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12, /ncome taxes:
International tax reform - Pillar Two
model rules

The amendments introduce a temporary
mandatory exception from deferred tax
accounting for the income tax arising from
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
to implement the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development (“OECD”)
(income tax arising from such tax laws is
hereafter referred to as “Pillar Two income
taxes”), including tax laws that implement
qualified domestic minimum top-up taxes
described in those rules. The amendments
also introduce disclosure requirements
about such tax including the estimated
tax exposure to Pillar Two income taxes.
The amendments are immediately effective
upon issuance and require retrospective
application. The amendments do not have a
material impact on these financial statements
as the Group does not reach the threshold to
be taxed under Pillar Two model rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ l:| j- i‘z $E % Iﬂj- I:II

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the
date on which control commences until the
date on which control ceases.

Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests (“NCI”) either at fair value or at the
NClI’s proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets. NCI are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. NCI in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HEAGFHEK #@

(Continued)

(f) Subsidiaries and non-controlling (f MBATIRIEZERERZ &
interests (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary KEBRNBLADNERE S U
that do not result in a loss of control are FERAREEHHEBRER®E &
accounted for as equity transactions. EREZZ AR
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, HAEBRKXEHN B QSR IEF
it derecognises the assets and liabilities of AR IEEIZMNBABNEE
the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other RBE URERERIFZER#ER
components of equity. Any resulting gain REMERABARID - EREALE
or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any RN m I EEREmESR o EA
interest retained in that former subsidiary is ML B R EER B
measured at fair value when control is lost. NENER A FERE
In the Company’s statement of financial 7MY BB A B BY 3% B 2 A 2 30 BR B
position, an investment in a subsidiary is BEEELRATNTHERTE AR
stated at cost less impairment losses (see (R M EE2(K)(0i)) ©
note 2(k)(ii)).

(g) Goodwill () BE

Goodwill arising on acquisition of businesses
is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(k)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment

()

(i)

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost, which includes
capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see
note 2(K)(ii)).

If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- ?ﬁ $E % Mj- DI

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BAEEHHBE @&
(Continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment (h) ME -BERRE &
(Continued)
(iii) Depreciation (i) #rE
Depreciation is calculated to write off MERBEGERE M
the cost of items of property, plant and 58 BB HAEE ) 2= ~ BB Re 5%

equipment less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives, and
is generally recognised in profit or
loss. Leased assets are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives unless it is reasonably
certain that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term.

The estimated useful lives of significant
items of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Buildings and plants 30 years

Major generator and 15-30 years
heat supply equipment

Other machineries 5-32 years

Motor vehicles, furniture, 5-10 years
fixtures, equipment
and others

Right-of-use assets Depreciated
including land use over the
rights shorter of the

unexpired

lease term or
the estimated
useful lives of

the assets

Depreciation methods, useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- i‘z $E % Iﬂj- I:II

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(k)

(i)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from
the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Pollutant emission rights
Software

4-5 years
5-10 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7r\

CLECE eSS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

Leased assets (Continued)
As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability, except for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets which, for
the Group are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)

Leased assets (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 2(h) and 2(k)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7r\

CLECE eSS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

Leased assets (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a lease modification, which
means a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract,
if such modification is not accounted for
as a separate lease. In this case, the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the
Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in profit
or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MBI MIEE

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BAEHHE ®

(Continued)

() Leased assets (Continued) () HEEE @)
As a lessee (Continued) EBAEN (&
In the consolidated statement of financial REaBRixA EPEE
position, the current portion of long-term BENNBESS ETARSHR
lease liabilities is determined as the present +-EERNEPEEN ST
value of contractual payments that are due RE-o

to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of (k) EEFEREERE
assets
(i) Credit losses from financial () EMIAZIEEEHE
instruments
The Group recognises a loss allowance AEEM TIEZBEBNERE
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on: BB (TFEHREEEE)) E
REIEEE
- financial assets measured at — REERAFENTH
amortised cost (including cash BEE (BiEReEkRESE
and cash equivalents, trade and B - RBKREZREM
other receivables); FIB) ;
Measurement of ECLs JEHEEEBIEE
ECLs are a probability-weighted TEHR(E BB 18 75 LARE =0 #
estimate of credit losses. Generally, HETNEEREE—RMs
credit losses are measured as the EEBEEUGHNERRTER
present value of all expected cash R BB AR SRR
shortfalls between the contractual and WIREFE o

expected amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

r o 75 AR MY 5

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueq)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and
trade and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueq)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting
date; and

= lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HEAGFHEK #@
(Continued)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of (k) EEFEREERE &)
assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial () EHMITAZIEEEEE &)
instruments (Continueq)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued) FARAEEHE AT E (&

The Group measures loss allowances AEBRERNE@BEER

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, NEAEEBEBENEETE

except for the following, which are BB E U T BRI 12

measured at 12-months ECLs: BRTEREERIETE !

- financial instruments that are — RBREHHERRIAAE
determined to have low credit risk ERBRENESMT
at the reporting date; and B &

- other financial instruments — BYBERIBUKEE
(including loan commitments Rz BIEEm TETER
issued) for which credit risk (i.e. AFERAFHRANELEN
the risk of default occurring B & BeR) iz f R E 1 AN
over the expected life of the HthEmT A (BFE %
financial instrument) has not THERAEIE) o
increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables BRESZRERGNEEN

and contract assets are always BEEBEE R ERERNE

- measured at an amount equal to BEEANEREEEEN
lifetime ECLs. EFREETEo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueq)

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition and when measuring ECLs,
the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit
assessment, that includes forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 60 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be in default when:

- the debtor is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group
in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or

—  the financial asset is 60 days past
due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR RN

n\7r\

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueq)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or being more than 90
days past due;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueq)

Credit-impaired financial assets
(Continued)

—  the restructuring of a loan or
advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

- it is probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

—  the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or
in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-
off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- ?ﬁ $E % Mj- DI

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HEAg
(Continued)

TR (4%

(k) EEBEHEREERE B

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current (i) BFFwB & ERE

assets

At each reporting date, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of
its non-financial assets (other than
property carried at revalued amounts,
investment property, inventories and
other contract costs, contract assets
and deferred tax assets) to determine
whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or cash-generating
units (“CGU”s). Goodwill arising from
a business combination is allocated
to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal.
Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or
CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. They are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then
to reduce the carrying amounts of the
other assets in the CGU on a pro rata
basis.

An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed. For other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the resulting
carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7r\

CLECE eSS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(m)

Inventories

Inventories include materials for repairs and
maintenance and spare parts, and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are initially recorded at cost and
are charged to operating expenses when
used, or capitalised to property, plant and
equipment when installed, as appropriate,
using weighted average cost basis. Cost of
inventories includes costs of purchase and
transportation costs. Provision for inventory
obsolescence is determined by the excess of
cost over net realisable value.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration and only the passage of
time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are initially
measured at their transaction price. Trade
receivables that contain a significant
financing component and other receivables
are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost (see
note 2(K)(i)).

Insurance reimbursement is recognised and
measured in accordance with note 2(s).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL (see note 2(K)(i)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings and
shareholder’s loan

Interest-bearing borrowings and
shareholder’s loan are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequently, interest-bearing borrowings
and shareholder’s loan are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with note 2(w).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BERGFHEE @

(Continued)

(q) Short-term employee benefits and

(r)

contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Short-term employee benefits are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability
is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans are expensed
as the related service is provided.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax
and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to a
business combination, or items recognised
directly in equity or in OCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Income tax (Continued)

()

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax
payable or receivable on the taxable
income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the
tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects uncertainty related
to income taxes, if any. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Current
tax also includes any tax arising from
dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect
of temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

- temporary differences on the
initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7r\

2

CLECE eSS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)
(i) Current tax (Continued)

— temporary differences related
to investment in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture to the
extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future;

- taxable temporary differences
arising on the initial recognition of
goodwill; and

— those related to the income
taxes arising from tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted
to implement the Pillar Two
model rules published by the
Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development.

The Group recognised deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities
separately in relation to its lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)
(i) Current tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. Future taxable
profits are determined based on the
reversal of relevant taxable temporary
differences. If the amount of taxable
temporary differences is insufficient to
recognise a deferred tax asset in full,
then future taxable profits, adjusted
for reversals of existing temporary
differences, are considered, based
on the business plans for individual
subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised;
such reductions are reversed when
the probability of future taxable profits
improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if certain criteria are met.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Generally provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for warranties is recognised when
the underlying products or services are sold,
based on historical warranty data and a
weighting of possible outcomes against their
associated probabilities.

mE M ERR M EE

BEAGHER #

( FREMR (&=
(i) BPEHIE ()
RIEMIBEETL LA AR

HEE RBARBRIER KA
?D%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁnu’ XA ]
FER B AR I E A Y 1B
%BE HE&ERR @R EE
RIFER IR B By Z BR AV R O]
E o i ERINE B E A B U
EREMEEREEE > AR
BAREBEANSHNEBE LB E
Bt 8l ZE BARRERINFF
8 WRIRIRA B ZRARY
[EEETHRE - EERMBFEN
ﬂ%ﬁiﬁﬂFﬁ,\u%Eéﬁﬁ i A
FER IR AHRAAR IR A m B
E'J?'L/(/W"\O = R IR FEERIR i
FME P REME IR B BRERID
LG (O] o

BEERMBEEKRBRERS
BETIRAFREEH -

(s) BERIAGR
—MRME > BRI ERBRIRR
CHEERBEEREREER
B B9 5F {5 BY A B0 A 2R ¥ TR HA R 2K
REMNBETTREE -

RIFEERERIRT R REE
LRFARBIBE R PSR R R
BER BN FE DR R o

AB) | cE-=EEERS




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BAXIFHEEK @)
(Continued)
(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities (s) BERIAREGE &

(Continued)

A provision for onerous contracts is
measured at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing
with the contract, which is determined
based on the incremental costs of fulfilling
the obligation under that contract and an
allocation of other costs directly related to
fulfilling that contract. Before a provision
is established, the Group recognises any
impairment loss on the assets associated
with that contract (see note 2(k)(ii)).

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to
be reimbursed by another party, a separate
asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- i‘z $E %E Iﬂj- I:II

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sales of goods or the
provision of services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i) Revenue from contracts with
customers

The Group is the principal for its
revenue transactions and recognises
revenue on a gross basis. In
determining whether the Group acts as
a principal or as an agent, it considers
whether it obtains control of the
products before they are transferred
to the customers. Control refers to the
Group’s ability to direct the use of and
obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits from the products.

Revenue is recognised when control
over a product or service is transferred
to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties such as value
added tax or other sales taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7r\

CLECE eSS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t} Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue from sales of
electricity

Revenue from sales of electricity is
recognised upon the transmission
of electric power to the power grid
companies, as determined based
on the volume of electric power
transmitted and the applicable
fixed tariff rates agreed with the
respective electric power grid
companies periodically.

Capacity tariff revenue

Capacity tariff revenue is
recognised on a time-apportioned
basis by reference to the installed
production capacity of individual
power plants and the relevant
capacity tariff rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t} Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Revenue from sales of heat

Revenue from sales of heat is
recognised upon the transmission
of heat to the third party
customers, as determined based
on the volume of heat transmitted
and the applicable unit price
agreed with the respective
customers periodically.

Revenue from provision of
operation and maintenance
services

Revenue from provision of
operation and maintenance
services is recognised overtime,
using an input method to
measure progress towards
complete satisfaction of the
service, because the customer
simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided
by the Group. Revenue is
recognised on a straight-line basis
because the Group’s inputs are
expended evenly throughout the
performance period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- ?ﬁ $E % Mj- DI

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t} Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii) Revenue from other sources and
other income

(a)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised
using the effective interest
method. The “effective interest
rate” is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial
asset. In calculating interest
income, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the
asset is not credit-impaired).
However, for financial assets that
have become credit-impaired
subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If the asset is no
longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income
reverts to the gross basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MBI MIEE

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t} Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii) Revenue from other sources and
other income (Continued)

(b)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial
position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them.

Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.

Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

(Continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the respective functional
currencies of group companies at the
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured based on historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency differences are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currency differences are recognised
in OCI and accumulated in the exchange
reserve, except to the extent that the
translation difference is allocated to NCI.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BERGFHEE @

(u) SMBBE
IR 7R % EH
i

2 ERRE
AEEADSNESE

REBEHBMINESHEZERE
ERGEZEAEXMELINE
B - %A TEFENINESHERN
FEREERERRZRATEE
ERERBME D INAEGE - LUSMNE
SIEMEERASENIFERE
ERBREXZERANEXRKRE -
SMNEE ZFR— RIS B m fE ST o

SNEE 2= BRI H th & [ U o B 5B A
KB REERNRET IEINEZEED
FoE IR e m bR Sh o

R EIRINEFERE Bl IR TS
HENRGEREETLERT
ERRRREDEMOBERm-




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MBI MIEE

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEKRIEHHEEK #@
(Continued)
(v) Dividends v) BRE
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the REREIRAEREDRASER-

period in which they are declared.

(w) Borrowing costs (w) EERZ
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable ERESRNE BEXNLEEEE
to the acquisition, construction or production (BEREERFB L EEEE
of an asset which necessarily takes a MIETE AR HECEE) 2B
substantial period of time to get ready for its ENAERCEAZBEERLSZ
intended use or sale are capitalised as part — o HMEEMAREL AR
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing H3z 0

costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x) Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

has control or joint control over
the Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of the Group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- i‘z $E %E Iﬂj- I:II

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBAEHHE &
(Continued)
(x) Related parties (Continued) (x) FAEAE &
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any b) "FEUTEMAKEGNERR

of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(i)

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

r o 75 AR MY 5

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

3 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE

A number of the Group’s accounting policies
and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. Fair values have been determined
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
based on the following methods. When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made
in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- i‘z $E % Iﬂj- I:II

3

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

(a)

(b)

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables

The carrying values of these financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective
fair values due to the short maturities of
these instruments.

Interest-bearing borrowings,
consideration payable, shareholder’s
loan and lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing
borrowings, consideration payable,
shareholder’s loan and lease liabilities
approximate their fair values based on the
borrowing rates currently available for bank
loans with similar terms and maturity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- ?ﬁ $E % Mj- DI

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WmEKknHBRS
(a) Revenue (a) Urzs
The principal activities of the Group are the REBRNTEEEARR KER
development, operation and management of BIREM

power plants.

H& T HEEEEWRATEBTEW
VIHERDIRAUKREHREE K

Revenue comprises volume tariff revenue,
capacity tariff revenue, revenue from sales of

companies.

Capacity tariff revenue represents

heat and revenue from provision of operation ’E EARFF UL A AR AX ©

and maintenance services.
Volume tariff revenue represents — EEEERAEOEAALT
the sale of electricity to power grid HESZ e

- REHNIEVMERK_-ZF

a subsidy income from power grid —HEEFEANBELNCEIRHE
companies, following a reduction in KA EE A 1T i 58 7
the annual planned power generation Tﬁﬂ?@fﬂ»&_;ﬁ_—ﬂfh
volume of the Group’s power plants for BEENHIEZEXNEZS
supply to the power grid companies EﬁiA/’E{b%@éf%/ﬁﬁﬁ

and changes in the electricity tariff
policies applicable to the Group
since 2015, pursuant to the “Notice

EENEA) BT —h
EE THRAEEERABHE
AEHENEFFFEEES

Regarding the Trial Implementation MBEANAEERNESERSE
of Dual Tariff for Natural Gas Power MEMEE ItEBNSE
Generating Units in Zhejiang Province” BEUWAIERE B R B UE
issued by Zhejiang Provincial Price BIFEEH UL A ©

Bureau in June 2015 and the
“‘Notice from the Zhejiang Provincial
Development and Reform Commission
Regarding the Optimising the Province's
On-grid Tariff of Natural Gas Power
Generation” issued in September 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(@) Revenue (Continued)

- Revenue from sales of heat represents
the sale of heat to corporate entities.

- Revenue from provision of operation
and maintenance services represents
the provision of operation and
maintenance services to corporate
entities.

Volume tariff revenue and revenue from sales
of heat are recognised upon the transfer of
products.

Capacity tariff revenue is recognised based
on the installed capacity and capacity tariff
on a time-apportioned basis.

Revenue from provision of operation
and maintenance services is recognised
overtime.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- ?ﬁ $E % M_.I- DI

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WmkDHWBHRS @)
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) Wz (%)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue () WmmiE
Disaggregation of revenue from BRFIFEEROBENEREY
contracts with customers by major Wz -

products is as follows:

2023 2022
—EC-= B2

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% TR RN

Revenue from contracts ] P2 B 75 3k &5 £ A1)
with customers within F155REEE AR
the scope of IFRS 15 EREHWE

Disaggregated by major products: 1% F* EE @948 !

Electricity: B
Volume tariff revenue BEEEE&WA 168,287 395,678
Capacity tariff revenue REBEWA 300,595 300,595
468,882 696,273
Heat: 2N
Revenue from sales of heat HEHR WA 44,628 56,869
Service: AR -
Revenue from provision of TR EE M AEERTS
operation and maintenance A
services 165
513,510 753,307

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(@) Revenue (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue
(Continued)

The Group’s customer base is
concentrated and includes one
customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenues. In 2023, volume tariff revenue
and capacity tariff revenue from this
customer (including its subsidiaries)
amounted to RMB468,882,000
(2022: RMB696,273,000). Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising
from this customer are set out in note
26(a).

Segment reporting

The most senior executive management have
identified five operating segments, which are
the five power plants, namely:

Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd.* (“Anji Power Plant”);

Zhejiang Puxing Deneng Natural Gas
Power Co., Ltd.* (“Deneng Power
Plant”);

Zhejiang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas
Power Co., Ltd.* (“Jing-Xing Power
Plant”);

Zhejiang Puxing Bluesky Natural Gas
Power Co., Ltd.* (“Bluesky Power
Plant”); and

Quzhou Puxing Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd.* (“Quzhou Power
Plant”)

For identification purpose only

n\7r\
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(a) Wz (&

(b)

(i)

Wzt 48 (#8)

AEEBNERERER  F—
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HHI0% N B =4F %
BZEE (BEEKRBAR)
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W A 22 3 A R #468,882,000
7T (::::E AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WaEKkDEHRES @)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) REIHS &

The most senior executive management
are of the view that these five operating
segments contribute to the entire revenue
of the Group and should be aggregated to
a single reportable segment of the Group,
power segment, for financial reporting
purpose as they have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
nature of products, production processes,
the type or class of customers and the
regulatory environment. Accordingly, no
segmental analysis is presented.

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from the
volume tariff revenue, capacity tariff revenue,
revenue from sales of heat and revenue from
provision of operation and maintenance
services in the PRC, and the principal non-
current assets employed by the Group
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no
analysis by geographical segments has been
provided for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MBI MIEE

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 FRIRAEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRIGATRATLIORR, GTA) UM TFIEE %
(crediting): R
(a) Net finance costs (a) BATERZSIFER

2023 2022

- -_—— — &= — —

—_— T —— —_—

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTR ENSEaEr

Interest income A B A (623) (583)

Finance income UL A (623) (583)

Interest on interest-bearing borrowings, 5t B & &« FEF B K

consideration payable and REREMF] S

shareholder’s loan 42,688
Interest on lease liabilities HEABEMNE 15
Total interest expense recognised in ~ MRIB@ DA B

profit or loss 4a%A 42,703
Bank charges R1ITEHR 39
Net foreign exchange loss SNEE RS IR SRR 4,401
Finance expenses MR 47,143
Net finance costs WIS A F R 46,560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5

CLECE eSS

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(b) Personnel costs

5

Wages, salaries and other benefits
Contribution to defined
contribution plans

RIS EIE A (&
(b) EIRZ
2023 2022
—E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET PNEE S
127 24,764 25,192
1| B9 (=R
2,565 2,501
27,329 27,693

The Group participates in pension funds
organised by the PRC government.
According to the respective pension fund
regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions. The Group remits
all the pension fund contributions to the
respective social security offices, which are
responsible for the payments and liabilities
relating to the pension funds. The Group has
no obligation for payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees
other than the contributions described
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MBI MIEE

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5 MRenad @)
(c) Other items (c) HfthiEH

2023 2022
—EZ=F et
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET PNEE S

Net loss on disposal of property, HEYE -BERKE
plant and equipment B 1R R 5 481
Depreciation charge (note 11) ERRE (fE11)
— Owned property, —BEBBEYE BEMEZE
plant and equipment 85,112
- Right-of-use assets —ERAEEE
- land use rights — TR 1,698
- Right-of-use assets —ERAEEE
— other properties —HfiE 326
Amortisation M
- Intangible assets (note 12) —\mrEE (12) 786
Expense relating to short-term leases EfEHATHE BRI 20
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BT B <&
— audit services —1ZBBR 5 1,700
— other services —HMARTE 950
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HMKkA

2023 2022

— —— — = — —

— T —— — =

RMB’000 RMB’000
N LR A\ RS T T

Government grants BT 488 B 3,743 3,577
Government grants represented unconditional BNEhE8aE_S _-_=+_A8
government grants of RMB3,343,000 (2022: =E+—BHLEFEEFTHAEENEKYG
RMB3,177,000) awarded to the Group and the BT 48 B A R 13,343,000t (Z& ==
amortisation of deferred government grants of £ ANR#3,177,00007T) E’Z?‘iﬁhLLH
RMB400,000 during the year ended 31 December JiF @ B A R #£400,0007% (& - —
2023 (2022: RMB400,000). AR #400,0007T) ©

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 REBEEXRANPER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Income tax in the consolidated (a) ‘REHETERABFREMRIE .

statement of profit or loss represents:

2023 2022
ZEC=F ekl

RMB’000 RMB’000
NS AKESTT

Current tax ENHAFR 1B
PRC Corporate Income Tax R 2FRER 23,364
Over provision in respect of prior years L1k E B EE#E 5 (988)
22,376

Deferred tax IRIEMIE
Origination and reversal of B E RN E 4 KO

temporary differences 2,272
Total income tax expense in the HEmFNAER

consolidated statement of B 2 48 %E

profit or loss 24,648
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MBI AR M EE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations
of the Cayman Islands, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been made as the Group did not
have any assessable profits subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022.

The provision for PRC Corporate
Income Tax is based on the respective
Corporate Income Tax rates applicable
to the subsidiaries located in the PRC
as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC.

According to the Corporate Income Tax
Law of PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC are subject to the unified tax
rate of 25%.

The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its relevant regulations impose a
withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty or arrangement, for
dividend distributions out of the PRC
from earnings accumulated from 1
January 2008.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 BREBEERANMER @
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense (b) BBARIFHENRIEMAZHE
and accounting profit at applicable tax sHEFIEER ©
rate:
2023 2022
—E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETr PNEE R
Profit before taxation FR#R A i A 107,637 76,578
Notional tax on profit before taxation, &R Al A 89 % Z 50 18
calculated at the rates applicable Bﬁﬁ FREBEEEZEEN
to profits in the tax jurisdictions wmAEAREFE
concerned 21,308
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7RI $0#5 B sz HIFR 75 52 £ 919
Tax effect of unused tax losses RIS B’Jﬂiﬁlﬂﬁﬁlﬁéﬁ?ﬁ
not recognised HNRFBEE 592
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised & )/ @1+ E E KRR
deductible temporary differences OREENRBEE
utilised (1,866) (2,522)
Recognition of previously unrecognised & 53 4t 5l 2k F& 52 A9 5] 4K 30
deductible temporary differences R E%R (117) (282)
Over provision in prior years U EEBREEE (252) (988)
Withholding tax on profits retained by =B B /A 517 B8 % A1) Y
- PRC subsidiaries SEiE 7,642 5,621
Actual tax expense BREMIEME 36,797 24,648
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Directors’
fee
EENg
RMB’000
AEETR
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Xu Anliang (retired on 4 March 2024) HREREE (RZ2ME
ZANARE
Mr. Wel Junyong wHEkE
Mr. Guan Dayuan (appointed on 4 March 2024) EABREE (RZE_ME
=RAEA Eé&)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Yuan Feng (appointed on 4 March 2024)  RB%4E (M-S _WE
“AMAEZT)
Independent non-executive Directors BiUkdES
Mr. Tse Chi Man BEXLE
Mr. Yao Xianguo thEB R
Mr. Yu Wayne W. aRELE

mE M ERR M EE

EEME

*ETF B REMRAIFE383(1) KA B (R
BEENDEN RASHKRENES
M=mT :

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F--F+ZA=1+—HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e RMR
B RETEL  BHAIER #zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR ARBTR

AT | CBE-=HEEHE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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8

CLECE eSS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8 EFME®@
Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_"FE+_B=-+—HIZFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
g B
EENE  REWAE FBTEA  BRIAGTEIER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERBTT ARETR AR®Tx ARETr ARET=R
Executive Directors HiTESR
Mr. Xu Anliang hEREE - - = = =
Mr. Wei Junyong BEBLLE - - - - =
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BIEHITESR
Mr. Tse Chi Man #ELE 172 - - - 172
Mr. Yao Xianguo HhEERE 172 - - - 172
Mr. Yu Wayne W. nREEEE 172 - - - 172
516 - - - 516

No emoluments were paid by the Group during
the year to the Directors in connection with their
retirement from employment with the Group, or
inducement to join. The directors’ emolument for
Mr. Xu Anliang and Mr. Wei Junyong for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 was borne
by China Wanxiang Holding Co., Ltd. (“China
Wanxiang”), which is a company controlled by
Mr. Lu Weiding (“Mr. Lu”), who is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company, and a subsidiary
of Wanxiang Group Corporation (“Wanxiang
Group”) respectively, who have waived their rights
to seek reimbursement from the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- %ﬁ $E %E |31_.|- I:II

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9. mE#HAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest AEBRALREHATH TL (2
emoluments, nil (2022: nil) is the director whose I TR AES HMMEEER Wﬁ
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The sE80 HT’@E% (CEZZF  H5%) A
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the five S48 T -

(2022: five) individuals are as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= =B

RMB’000 RMB’000
N Rl AR TT

Wages, salaries and other benefits e LEREMER] 1,280 1,520
Discretionary bonuses E’J |E?E,,I 536 478
Contributions to defined contribution plan R RN ET B R 195 187

2,011 2,185
The emoluments of the five (2022: five) individuals AR (CEZZFE AR RS ALTH
with the highest emoluments are within the Biie LA T4ER -

following bands:

2023 2022
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
AE A8
HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 =2 1,000,00078 7T 5
No emoluments were paid by the Group during FR O AERMBERALRSHESE
the year to the five highest paid employees in B EANBEAERNRBMEEZ T
connection with their retirement from employment i

with the Group, or inducement to join.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 S8REF

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB70,842,000 (2022: RMB51,932,000)
and the weighted average of 458,600,000
(2022: 458,600,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share was the same as
basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022
as there were no dilutive potential shares
during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n\7|'\ j- ?‘Z $E %E M_.I- I:II

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME BB KRR E
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) EREEZHER
Motor
Major vehicles,
generator furniture,  Right-of-use
and heat fixtures, assets
Buildings supply Other  equipment carried at  Assets under
andplants ~ equipment  machineries grg o{;h;&rs cost  construction Total
580R ERRE REANED

BTREE  HAxf  EMRE Rify EREEE  f£RAE it
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBO0O
ARBTT  ARETR  ARETx  ARBTn  ARBTn  ARETT  ARETE

Cost: [
At 1 January 2022 ﬁ/\_ F__F-F-H 378,036 1,900,812 334,889 17,344 64,607 1,742 2,697,430
Additions - - 1,867 76 281 4,739 6,963
Transfer from assets under ﬁﬂ*ﬁ?’ BEE

construction 67 3,507 1,759 38 - (5,366) -
Disposals RE - (699) (572) (289) - - (1,454)
At 31 December 2022 and S = o

1 January 2023 & BT ﬁ = 378,103 1,903,720 337,943 ) 64,888 1,115 2,702,939
Additions - 177 64 - 5,295 5,793
Transfer from assets under %ﬁé BEREE

construction - 3,758 2,215 - - (6,033) -
Disposals RE - (2.231) (397) (¢82) (86) (3,400)
Reclassiication EHOE (36,639) 36,639 - - - - -
At 31 December 2023 RIBZ=F+ZA=1-A 341,464 1,042,063 330,885 ; 64,406 201 2,705,332

Accumulated depreciation BHFERMESE :

and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2022 W_E-%-F-A (130805  (i7768)  (208,092) (17,087) [8757) - (1,082507)
Charge for the year EW%% 10,783 (58,824) (15,478) 07) 2,024) = 87,136)
Written back on disposals ~ RE&[] - 264 367 146 = - m
At 31 December 2022and ~ RZE__&+"RA=1-H

1 January 2023 R-E-=%-P-H (141,58 (776,326  (223,209) (16,068) (10,781) (1,168,866)
Charge for the year ERER (11,651) (60,326) (15,046) (32) (1,901) (89,856)
Written back on disposals ~~ RER&[] - 1,497 242 193 482 2,354
Reclassffication BNNE 5,506 (5,506) - - - -
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=£+-A=1-H (47,733 (840721)  (288,907) (16,807) (12,200) (1,256,368)
Net book value: RESE
At 81 December 2023 RIZZZF+ZA=1-A 193,731 1,101,342 100,978 ! 1,448,964
At 31 December 2022 RZB-"E+A=+-H 26515 1,127,304 14740 202 54,107 1115 153,073
As at 31 December 2023, no property, plant RIE_=F+"HA=+—H %
and equipment were pledged as collateral for EYE -BEMZEBEIRBAIIRT
bank loans (31 December 2022: Nil). ,\TA E’J i #F m(CTEZZF+ZA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME-BERRKE &)
(Continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FEHESEE
The analysis of the net book value of right- FTRHEEENREFEREMRE
of-use assets by class of underlying asset is EFER AU
as follows:

2023 2022

—EC=F e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
I ARSTrx PNELE S

Leasehold land held for own use, F{EEHBEE i

carried at depreciated cost T E R A5 BR (i) 53,802

Other properties leased for own FHEEE ARE MY
use, carried at depreciated cost 2 IZITE R AGIEE (i) 305
54,107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MBI MIEE

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME-BERRKE &)
(Continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) FERESEE @)
The analysis of expense items in relation RiERFPEINEEEREMBASZIE
to leases recognised in profit or loss is as BT
follows:

2023 2022

—EC=F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(i AR¥Trx PNEL:S

Depreciation charge of ZAERAE EFERFIR
right-of-use assets by HERAEEETE
class of underlying asset: A :
Leasehold land held for own FEBRANEE
use T (i) 1,698
Other properties leased HMEFEANEM
for own use LY ES (ii) 326
2,024
Interest on lease liabilities MESENE
(note 5(a)) (Ft5E5(a)) 15
Expense relating to BIGHATHE A RERY
short-term leases 52 20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR RN

n\7r\

11

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, there is no addition of right-
of-use assets (2022: RMB281,000).

Details of total cash outflow for leases and
the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set
out in notes 17(c) and 22, respectively.

()

(ii)

Leasehold land held for own use

The Group holds several leasehold
lands, which lump sum payments were
paid to PRC government authorities,
with a lease period of 30 to 50 years
when granted. It carried at depreciated
cost and depreciation is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the respective periods of the land
use rights.

Other properties leased for own
use

The Group has obtained the right to use
other properties as its office buildings
and staff dormitory through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 2 to 3 years. Lease
payments are usually increased every
2 or 3 years to reflect market rentals.
None of the leases includes variable
lease payments.
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11

ME-BERRE @

(b)

EHREEE &)

RER TEABEERAEEE (Z

T "% AR#281,0007T) °

HEMNREEREEELTEEASS

B9 B HR o A7 2 5E 1B 2 Bl & 5 5L B

|:\£17( )&220

() HFEEAMHEELH
AEEFE IR A BB AT
BT —RERARNEE
iiHJ TE&H%%EHH%BOEM
T o % % I M IR T EE A AT BR
&%ﬁ%&iﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁff&ﬁﬁ@)ﬂ
FHUEBFEEREBRF
fR o

(i) FHEFERREMYE
REBFBHERZIEE

RBEMYMEERSPLREFT R
ETEENEN -ZFHES
B S HER2EIF-HEN
R— MR AmE2YIFE LA —R
UkBhmzEz - MEEES
BRI EEEAM




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

mE M ERR M EE

12 EREE

Pollutant
emission
rights Software Total
S LG #act
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T AR
Cost: 57
At 1 January 2022 A _E__F—H—H 3,507 42 3,549
Additions hE 2,637 - 2,537
Disposals & (3,152) - (3,152)
At 31 December 2022 and 2023 M- ZE_-_"_&EK_T "=
pa—E == — H
Accumulated amortisation: Sty .

RZE2-__F#—H—H
FNEH
= & (0]

At 1 January 2022
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

(3,146) (19) (3,165)
(782) 4) (786)
3,152 - 3,152

At 31 December 2022

Charge for the year FRER

RZE__H#+"H=+—H

(776)
(705)

(799)
(709)

At 31 December 2023

RIEZ=F+"A=1+—H

(1,481) (1,508)

IRMEFE .

Net book value:

At 31 December 2023

RZE_=F+"A=+—H

At 31 December 2022

RZE-__#+"H=+—H

2,116 19 2,135

The amortisation charge of RMB709,000
(2022: RMB786,000) for the year is included
in “depreciation and amortisation” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

FERN#EIFRHEZARE709,0007T (Z=
— & AR#786,0007T) Bt AlzE
IR R AR T E R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

13 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET 13 HthERIEE

2023 2022
—EZ=F i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETx PNEE:S

Prepayment of maintenance service fee ENRERBE 21,848 12,636
Other non-current asset represents the prepaid HMERBEERKRBILE = A HER
maintenance service fee for the daily repair and RENHEHEERGERBNENRE
maintenance service provided by an independent RFS & o

third party supplier.

14 INVENTORIES 14 #&

2023 2022

—E-= —=E_
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFrx PNEL S
Spare parts B 57,162 57,224
Materials and supplies Yyl K (e 1,059 1,135
Low value consumables BEEEHER 244 241

> 58,465 58,600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ l:| j- i‘z $E %E Iﬂj- I:II

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 RBARNKRE
The following list contains only the particulars of TREFEFEXLELERXZE -BE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, FEENHNBABNEIE R BEH
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of SN FRFRRD5ER AT ER o

shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Percentage of
Place and date of equity attributable Issued and
establishment/ to the Company fully paid-up/ Principal

incorporation w registered capital country Principal

Name of company I/ #MA L Direct Indirect BRARYRE/ of operation activity

NGE HERAY i i HRES TEREER TEEH

Puxing Tian (HK) Limited (‘Puxing Tian") Hong Kong 100% - HK$193,663,941/  Hong Kong, China  Investment holding
26 June 2008 Not applicable

% &#) ARAT (TEEX) ) 100% - 19366394187/ HEES REER
“ZRN\ERBZ1RE TEA

Puxing Xing (HK) Limited (‘Puxing Xing’) Hong Kong 100% - HK$98,844,399/  Hong Kong, China  Investment holding
26 June 2008 Not applicable

A (B8 ARAT (TEEE)) ) 100% - 98,844,309,/ HEEE REER
ZEEN\ERAZTAH TER

Puxing Neng (HK) Limited (“Puxing Neng”) Hong Kong 100% - HK$75,624,511/  Hong Kong, China  Investment holding
26 June 2008 Not applicable

L2k (B8 BRAT (MBER) ) 100% - 75,624 511875,/ HEEE REER
ZEEN\ERAZTAH TER

Puxing An (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HK$1/  Hong Kong, China  Investment holding
2 September 2008 Not applicable

227 (B4 BRAT B 100% - 1%/ MR HEEE REK

“ZE\EABCH

Zhejiang Puxing Bluesky Natural Gas Power The PRC - 100% US$17,171,400/ The PRC Power generation
Co., Ltd. (i) 15 December 2004 US$17,171,400

MIEEEXRAREERRAT) e - 100% 17,171,40087/ HE BE
“S2IMET-ATAA 17,171,400 70
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE IR R M EE
i (3 7~ pa) Mo
15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 RBATENKE @&
(Continued)
Percentage of
Place and date of equity attributable Issued and
establishment/ ~ t0 the Company fully paid-up/ Principal
incorporation w registered capital country Principal
Name of company FR 3L/ S AR 3 Direct Indirect BETRER/ of operation activity
R4 HER B Ef % HRES TEREEX TERH
Zhejiang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas Power The PRC = 100% US$16,660,000/ The PRC  Power generation
Co., Ltd. (i) 6 January 2005 US$16,660,000
MIEERBAREBERAF) HE - 100% 16,660,000% 7%/ e 4z
“Z2R5-F5H 16,660,000% 75
Zhejiang Puxing Deneng Natural Gas Power The PRC = 100% US$18,408,710/ The PRC  Power generation
Co., Ltd. i) 18 August 2004 US$18,408,710
MLEEEEAREBERAH() HE - 100% 18,408,710%7/ HiE EE
“E2IMENATNE 18,408,710%70
Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power The PRC - 100% US$46,011,933/ The PRC Power generation
Co., Ltd. (i) 25 February 2011 US$46,011,933 and heat supply
EE (%5) MEABERAH() HE - 100% 46,011,983%7/ HiE BERMR
“§——FZRZtEA 46,011,933% 70
Wenling Juneng Wind Power Generation Co., Ltd. The PRC = 78% RMB4,000,000/ The PRC  Power generation
("Wenling Power Plant’) (i) 3 July 2014 RMB50,000,000 (under design and
planning stage)
BERERNEEERAT (MRESM) (i) HE - 8% AR4,0000007/ ME RS (ke kR
“3-MmEtA=H A %50,000,0007 B&)
Quzhou Puxing Gas Turbine Thermal Power The PRC = 100% RMB300,000,000/ The PRC  Power generation
Co., Ltd. i) 30 November 2011 RMB300,000,000 and heat supply
BN E ERRAZ AR Q) HE - 100%  AR300,000,0007c,/ HiE BERMR
“Z——%+-fA=+H A %300,000,0007

i: Wholly foreign-owned enterprise established under the PRC RIEFPEERR NI EEERREEAR

law with limited liability

RIBREERRINFIEGERREEAR

i Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise established under ii:
the PRC law with limited liability

ii  REFEERRINAREEAH

jii: Limited liability company established under the PRC law
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR RN

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16 BWE Z KHEHMMIRIE

n‘7|'\

Note
Fe 5%

Trade receivables W E 5 8
Prepayments FEfI I
Other receivables H fth fE U 18

(i) Prepayments

The balance of prepayments as at 31 December 2023 mainly
represents the prepayment for purchase of natural gas and
maintenance service fee.

All of the trade and other receivables are expected
to be recovered or recognised as expense within
one year.

At 31 December 2023, ageing analysis of trade
receivables of the Group based on the invoice
date is as follows:

2023

_—=——

RMB’000

AR T

46,086
12,904
3,098

62,088

AR

2022

=

— S e

RMB’000

ARETTT

60,656
12,937
322

73,915

BE_Z_=F+_A=1T—HANANRELS
HEIRZARBERARKMEERTENTRGT

IHo

PRERKE Z REMRIBRRAAN —F
MUk el e iR AR

A —

BB ZRIERER
T

\_7__

Within 1 month — @A R
After 1 month but within 6 months
After 6 months but within 1 year

After 1 year but within 2 years

BE—ERAENERA
BENERE—FA
BiE—FEMFA

—F+ZR=+—H F&H

2023

—%==
RMB’000

ARETR

45,868

ARBT T

ZHHAPTFRIIREC

2022

=

—_—

RMB’000

60,386
52
218
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17 RERREEEYUREMIRE
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION mE R
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERREEEMEIE .

2023 2022
—E-= B

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRx PNEL:Swr

Cash and cash equivalents AR e AR R K

in the consolidated statement of FERERERM

financial position and consolidated IR& &KIREEHEY)

statement of cash flows 130,719 89,431

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) MEEFBEESFEHIKR

from financing activities
The table below details changes in the TREIMEBEEHMELLER
Group’s liabilities from financing activities, BEZEFH:F 5 OERERIER
including both cash and non-cash changes. EEBH -METHELZEREIE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are HREEREEKARKREERE
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future FRAERGRERERERDSE
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s AHMBEHELAZEREERENE
consolidated statement of cash flows as Je

cash flows from financing activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MBI MIEE

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17 RERREFEYUREMIREE
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION mER @)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) MEEFEBELEBHIR @)

from financing activities (Continueq)

Interesting-
bearing Consideration Shareholder’s Lease
borrowings payable loan liabilities Total

ftEEE ERKE RREM fEaf it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR® AE¥®Trm AE%®Tn AR¥ETR ARET®m

(I CRE)] (note 20) (note 18) (note 22)

(HizE19) (Hiz£20) (HizE18) (Miz22)

At 1 January 2023 R-E-Z%—-HF—-H 745,755 106,655 106,506 27 959,187

Changes from financing REREHEZEE .
cash flows:

Capital element of lease EARERASN
rentals paid BRI - (175)
Proceeds from new loans ~ $iEMZFrEIE 418,009 418,009
Repayment of loans BEER (448,319) (448,319)
Payment for acquisition PR EEE TR
of Quzhou Power Plant EMERAR
under common control (95,851) (95,851)

Total changes from MEREREZ

financing cash flows BERTE 715,445 10,804 106,506 832,851
Other adjustments: Hith:R%
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 1,576
Net increase/(decrease) in -~ FEAHFI BB H3

accrued interest expense #2111,/ Gi)) (10,804) (6,090)

At 31 December 2023 R-E-=%
+-B=+-H 715,375 112,866 828,337
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR RN

n\7l'\

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17 RERREEEYUREMIRE
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION mER &
(Continued)

(b) MEFBELERMGREHER @)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising
from financing activities (Continueq)

Interesting-
bearing  Consideration  Shareholder’s Lease
borrowings payable loan liabilities Total
HERE EARE RREM HEAE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETR ARETT AREFfRn ARETR
(note 19) (note 20) (note 18) (note 22)
(fiEE19) (FiE20) (Ffizk18) (izE22)
At 1 January 2022 R-B-—%-B-AH 717,438 208,045 93,138 326 1,018,947
Changes from financing FEREHEZEE !
cash flows:
Capital element of lease BERHEEREN
rentals paid BAMH - - - (336) (336)
Proceeds from new loans ~ #TEMZFTE7E 438,000 - - - 438,000
Repayment of loans BEER (409,750) - - - (409,750)
Payment for acquisition P E R TR
of Quzhou Power Plant EMNERMR
under common control = (100,000) = = (100,000)
Total changes from MEREREZ
financing cash flows BEiEE 28,250 (100,000) - (336) (72,086)
Other adjustments: HitiR
Exchange adjustments EREE - - 8,803 - 8,803
Increase in lease liabilities ~ ERHIUHHEE
from entering into new BNNHESE
leases during the year - - - 281 281
Net increase/(decrease) i~ FEFFIS B AF
accrued interest expense 11/ (A/) 67 (1,390) 4,565 - 3,242
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZ
+-A=+-H 745,755 106,655 106,506 271 959,187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Z.i—. P
1717 N e |

RA 75 i ) MY 5E

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17 RERFRESEBYUREMIRS
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION MER @)
(Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEZHRERLELEE
Amounts included in the consolidated MEESFAGZERERERNE
statement of cash flows for leases comprise U
the following:
2023 2022
—EZC=F pekialetd
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR NG
Within operating cash flows FAREREMNE 342 35
Within financing cash flows FARMBRSRE 175 336
517 371
These amounts relate to the following: ZETHEMTIEEARM -
2023 2022
ZECCF el
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTr WG
Lease rentals paid ENHEERES 517 371

ZEREFRAT | —B-=SFERE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7r\

18

CLECE eSS

SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN 18 BREREW
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETr PNEL:Swr
Principal amount KEEE 98,286 96,881
Accrued interest expense FESHH BRI 14,580 9,625
112,866 106,506

As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding
principal amount of shareholder’s loan due
to Puxing International Limited (“Puxing
International”), the immediate controlling
company of the Company, was HK$108,457,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB98,286,000) (31
December 2022: HK$108,457,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB96,881,000)), bearing interest
at 4.9% per annum.

The above outstanding principal and related
interest were due on 30 December 2022, but has
not been repaid as at 31 December 2023. The
Group is negotiating repayment arrangement with
Puxing International.
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=+—H : 108,457,000 7T (FBERH
AE#96,881,0007T)) * #EF]ZE4.9%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MBI MIEE

19 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 19 stEEE

At 31 At 31
December December
2023 2022

® i

— — = — —

+=8 +=7
=+-8 s
RMB’000 RMB’000
TSN \RET T

Unsecured loans from related parties (i) &3 38 B 3&E 75 & 24(i) 642,607 675,680
Unsecured bank loans HMIRIFIRITERN 72,768 70,075

715,375 745,755

Reconciliation to the consolidated #& MR RARZEHIR :
statement of financial position:

Current liabilities mEMEE 374,575 244,755

Non-current liabilities 1 =K 340,800 501,000

715,375 745,755
()  Unsecured loans from related parties () HRIZTEBEZ=%F+ZH=+—8®
as at 31 December 2023 represented EIKHRAE S ERIEREEDHT
loans and accrued interest expense from BHERKEFIERIARKE
Wanxiang Finance of RMB642,607,000 (31 642,607,000 (ZE2-_Z“F+"A~
December 2022: from Wanxiang Finance of =+—H  REEOMBNERR
RMB605,680,000 and from Shanghai Pu- FE 57 BB A R 605,680,000
Xing Energy Limited (“Shanghai Puxing”) of TRKRBEERERS 2R (TE
RMB70,000,000), which borne interest at BELE)) NERARY70,000,000
3.45% - 3.70% per annum (31 December 70)  HT5 R FEF)FE3.45%E3.70%
2022: 3.70% - 4.75% per annum) and will (ZE__&F#+-_HA=+—H ' &
be repayable from 2024 to 2026. MZEI.70%E4.75%) st B B Z

ETNEE_EF T NFEHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7r\

20

CLECE eSS

CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

Current BN EAR

EAAE
el 2022
DT rveoo
ARE T ENELEEE
106,655
106,655

According to the share transfer agreement
dated 6 May 2020 entered into between
Deneng Power Plant, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Shanghai Puxing,
the then intermediate parent company of the
Company (the “Share Purchase Agreement”),
a final consideration of RMB355.85 million (the
“Final Consideration”) should be paid in four
installments in the manner set out in the Share
Purchase Agreement and the outstanding Final
Consideration bears a fixed interest rate of 5% per
annum.

The first payment of RMB50,000,000, the second
payment of RMB110,000,000 and the third
payment of RMB100,000,000 were fully repaid in
October 2020, September 2021, and September
2022 respectively. And the remaining part of
RMB95,851,000 with related interest expense
were repaid in November 2023 and December
2023 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MBI MIEE

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 ENESZREMIE

2023 2022
—E-= ===

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT EELERT

Trade payables & B 5 FR I8 4,682 795
Salary payable e $r & 4,758 8,614
Construction payable FEAT IR RRIE 4,835 4,640
Other taxes payable HMEARIE 7,418 7,795
Accrued expenses and other payables FEEH B X R BT I8 3,951 3,059

25,644 24,903
As at 31 December 2023, the ageing analysis of RIEBE_=F+"FB=+—H &x&H
trade payables of the Group based on the invoice R B 2 RIBREZHHAMMENIRE O
date, is as follows: M

2023 2022

—g-= R CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
N LR AR T T

Within 3 months =X(EYSEAN 4,682 795

4,682 795
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

22

23

LEASE LIABILITIES 22

At 31 December 2023, the lease liabilities were
repayable as follows:

HE&R
R_ZB_=ZF+-H=+—H EEH
EafRWT:

2023 2022
—E=F ik

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTrx PBNEL: S

Within 1 year —FRN 175
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMERN 96
96
271
DEFERRED REVENUE 23 RIEW

2023 2022

—E=F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PN
Government grants BT 7 Bl 10,694 11,094

The government grants are recognised as income
over the periods necessarily to match them with
the related costs of assets constructed which they
are intended to compensate over the periods and
in the proportion in which depreciation on those
assets is charged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position
represents:

24

Z.i—. P
1717 N e |

RA 75 i ) MY 5E

REMBRARABFREHR

(a) HREMFBRRREOBAARIAS :

Balance at 1 January R—HB—HBH&R

Provision for PRC Corporate Income & N FR B 1> 2 FR 1850 B 14

Tax for the year

Transferred from deferred tax upon k% SR8 5 IEIER IS

distribution of dividends
Corporate Income Tax paid

[SENFISESTEELT

Balance at 31 December

K+=—RA=+—Hp%&Ek

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR PGS
21,802 29,382
26,099 22,376

- 17,214

(24,811) (47,170)
23,090 21,802

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised:

(b)

Reconciliation to the consolidated
statement of financial position

(b) BHEBNEEREFEEERAR:

REMBRRRZHER

2023 2022
ZEZCF i

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETrx PNELESwwr

Net deferred tax assets RiRE MBIk &
recognised in the consolidated Fe 58 B IR SE AR T
statement of financial position BEFE

Net deferred tax liabilities Rixa Bk R
recognised in the consolidated ERRIEETR IE
statement of financial position BB

6,119 8,920

(25,751)

(19,632)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE MBI AR M EE

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 REUMBRARANARFIR @

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(c) Movement of each component of (c) BEREBTEREGEZIHEMES
deferred tax assets and liabilities Ry Eh
The component of deferred tax assets/ FAREE MBI RREDER
(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated ERBEE, (BB REZFHN
statement of financial position and the e <

movements during the year are as follows:

Withholding
tax on
Property, profits
Property, plant and retained by
plantand  equipment- Unpaid the Group’s
equipment- other  Government accrued Tax PRC
Deferred tax arising from depreciation  adjustments grants expenses losses  subsidiaries Total
i8]
EN HEWBAT
% BER e £ fReEak
ELBUTRENBIERE mfE-HE  -HEE B A% fEsH R At

RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMBO0O  RMB'OO0  RMBOOO  RMB'ODO  RMBOOD
AR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2022 RZE-_"#-H-H (10,657) 3,940 2,874 3,049 - (23,082) (23,876)
Recognised in consolidated R ERERED

statement of profit or loss 138 214 (101) (348) 3,446 (5,621) (2,272)
Transferred from deferred tax ~ DEKREFERE

liabilities upon distribution of ~ JEREEE

dividends - - - - - 17,214 17,214

At 31 December 2022 and RIBE-Z%&

1 January 2023 +ZR=+-Bk
“E-ZE5-B-A (10,519) 2113 2,701 3,446 (11,489) (8,934)
Recognised in consolidated REERERED
statement of profit or loss (301) (100) (2,701) - (7,642) (10,698)
At 31 December 2023 o
+ZB=+-8 (10,820) 3,446 (19,131) (19,632)
As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax RZIEZ=%F+Z"“A=+—8"B
liabilities of RMB19,131,000 (2022: PAEE RN E RS RS &
RMB11,489,000) have been recognised in B9 53 VK T FE 19 B9 78 30 R 7 50 4 3
connection with the withholding tax that RIEaEARE19,131,0007T (=
would be payable on the distribution of T " AR®11,489,0007T) ©
the retained profits of the Group’s PRC REENBEEA10%

subsidiaries. The applicable rate for the
Group is 10%.
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mE M ERR M EE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 REUMBRARANARFIR @

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised (d) REFRERERBEEE
Deferred tax assets have not been BARMUATEERDRELERIEE
recognised in respect of the following items, B RERAKABERRKEZRR
because it is not probable that future taxable AR AREBNFBBEN o

profit will be available against which the
Group can use the benefits therefrom.

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
ZEI=E+ZAZ+—H it s s
Gross Tax Gross Tax
amount effect amount effect
ot HERE k] MBTE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR BNE SN A

Deductible temporary differences 7] 3075 & B = 48 50,282 12,571 59,055 14,764
Tax losses MIBEE 15,099 3,543 4,471 885

65,381 16,114 63,526 15,649
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 HZEMBRARRNBEAER &

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised (d) FKERNIEERIESE &)
(Continued)
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations RIEPE A EESANERERA
in the mainland China and Hong Kong, the IR RERSARNKERR
unrecognised tax losses at the end of the BEBERIUTEMDRIA
reporting period will expire in the following
years:

2023 2022

—E—= —=— —

— T —— e

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTR NG

2024 “EIME 8
2025 —ERHE 1,612
2026 ZEIRE 104
2027 :;ﬁ:tﬁ 11
2028 —EN\EFE —
Unexpired* R HR* 2,736
4,471
* The tax losses under Hong Kong tax jurisdiction can * EEMBEAHEBE THNNBEETH
be utilised against the future taxable profits derived DURSH AR B BN SR EE N RKER
- from Hong Kong by the relevant entity, and do not MiaF] > RIBIVITRBAG A GEE o

expire under current tax legislation.
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 BAR-#HEKRKRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) #ERmEBRZEH
The reconciliation between the opening and KEBRGEERSHTDFEHAF
closing balances of each component of the 7VE§%B%Z“@JEEM BRZ AR &
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the R ERmE B R o KA B E 7R #E
consolidated statement of changes in equity. EE-E‘K P EVEERZEBNFEBWN
Details of the changes in the Company’s S €

individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
The Company FARE
Share Share  Contributed Capital  Translation Accumulated Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses equity
kx  ROEE  BARE  BErEE  EREE RHER LT 4
Note RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
e ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZEZZF—B—-BMER 40,149 11,230 358,044 26,085 (11,837) (28,278) 395,373
Changes in equity for 2022: “ECCERREE:.
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (8,896) (8,896)
Other comprehensive income HiZERA - - - - 14,516 - 14,516
Total comprehensive income ERZANALE
for the year - - - - 14,516 (8,896) 5,620

Dividends approved in respect BRENGERE
of previous year 25(d)ii) - (11,230) (10,665) - - - (21,895)

Balance at 31 December 2022 WR-ZE--#+-F=+-H
iopef o 40,149 - 347379 26,065 2,679 (37,174) 379,098

Share  Contributed Capital ~ Translation Accumulated Total
capital surplus reserve reserve losses equity

k& BABR EffE Sk BitER aEs

\UCll RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
El AEXTT ARRTT ARNTR ARRTR ARMTR ARRTR

Balance at 1 January 2023 RIEZ=F—A—AMELS 40,149 347,379 26,065 2,679 (37,174) 379,098
Changes in equity for 2023: ZECCEREGEY.
Loss for the year FERNEE - (6,354) (6,354)
Other comprehensive income Ht2EBA I - 2,215

Total comprehensive income ERZERALE
for the year ; (6,354) (4,139)

Balance at 31 December 2023 H_-E-=#+-H=+-H
iofr 40,149 347,379 26,065 f (43,528) 374,959
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 BEX-REERKRE @&

(Continued)

(b) Share capital

(b) Beas

2022
“ECfF
No. of
Amount shares Amount
A K& E T8
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
Authorised: BE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SN NI b3 1A 1,000,000,000 ST 1,000,000,000 100,000
2023 2022
ot Jonk kS’
No. of Amount No. of Amount
shares Amount equivalent to shares Amount  equivalent to
) RiHR&E &E  SEAER B Gl &8 SEEER
Ordinary shares,
issued and fully paid HK$000  RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
EERERTRAR TET AR%TR TEx ARETxH
At 1 January ®—B—8 458,600,000 45,860 ITRTTN 458,600,000 45,860 40,149
At 31 December ®+-B=+-R 458,600,000 45,860 ITRTT 458,600,000 45,860 40,149
(c) Reserves (c) f#fE
(i) Share premium () BRREE
The application of the share premium BHRREENERIHEH
account is governed by the Companies ERBNERE ©
Law of the Cayman Islands.
(i) Capital reserve (i) BXEE#E
Capital reserve represents the amount BERRERASABDRBESE
allocated to the unexercised equity EE{T 2 ERESNERT
component of convertible bonds issued BRI D EDEENEEE

by the Company in the previous years.
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Reserves (Continued)

(iii) Merger reserve

Merger reserve mainly represents:

(@)

the excess of the aggregate of
paid-in capital of the subsidiaries
comprising the Group pursuant
to a reorganisation completed
in June 2009 for the listing (the
“Reorganisation”) of the Group
over the consideration paid by
the Company, representing the
nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange
thereof; and

the adjustment of elimination of
paid-in capital of Quzhou Power
Plant with the consideration in
relation to the acquisition that
Deneng Power Plant acquired
100% equity interests in Quzhou
Power Plant from Shanghai Puxing
(business combination under
common control) completed on 30
September 2020.

25 BEX-HERKRE @

(c) R =

(iii) BHEFEE

AHEEEES:

(@ ATEEBETHEBEATR
BAEBRNR _ZZNEF
NEMEBTERZES

(ME#)) BB RAR

BBAEAR AT FTTAE
(B0 &= A B) 1F 2 I8 PR
BTRMVEE ¥
EEId

LE - - FEANAB
=+ H e M EAE B MK
LT EWEEMNE
FR100% R M IR B =18
(EEEZEH THEES
) BRI EH HE M
BB HIRAMIEE
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

25 BEX-HERRE @

(c) f#fE =)
(iv) #AZER

(c) Reserves (Continued)
(iv) Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the BABRRFIEREZEE -Z£2
excess of the fair value of the shares of BREEXFEEETFEE

Puxing Neng, Puxing Xing and Puxing
Tian determined on the basis of the

ENSER -EEBEREERXR
RONEMLABBHNAFER

consolidated net assets of Puxing BARNBMERZIMTEITR
Neng, Puxing Xing and Puxing Tian at RESIER =P 6
the date of the Reorganisation over the
nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange thereof.
(v) Statutory surplus reserve (v) ZEZBEIFE

Statutory surplus reserves were
established in accordance with the

EERGFHEERE DA
B 38 TE B A& 3 LA R 7 H B B

relevant PRC rules and regulations INAEEETSATNA
and the articles of association of those HERMEIRY  BEERES
companies comprising the Group BRERHEREMEANS0%
which are established in the PRC until Bl HEEFERREED
the reserve balance reached 50% of HE A o

their registered capital. Appropriations
to the reserves were approved by the
respective board of directors.

For the entity concerned, statutory
surplus reserves can be used to make
good previous years’ losses, if any,
and may be converted into capital
in proportion to the existing equity
interests of investors, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25
(Continued)
(d) Dividends (d) BE

(i) Dividends payable to equity () FEREMELGTERBRER
shareholders of the Company &
attributable to the year

BEXREERRE @

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PNEE:RWwE
Final dividend proposed REBIABEIKEN
after the reporting date of KR EEBREATT
HK$ Nil (2022: HK$0.026) 2
per share 0.0267 1) 10,440

BENR_E_=FA+h
HRTHNKRRBEFAZES
MREE RE-__F+_
B=+t—HB&BKENZ
ST _EFEERPAKREAR
10,440,0007¢ (F80.0267%8
TC) REH#E o

Pursuant to a resolution passed at
the annual general meeting held on
19 June 2023, the final dividend
proposed after 31 December 2022 of
RMB10,440,000 (HK$0.026 per share)
attributable to the year 2022 was not
approved.

PR &5 B AR 18 5K 35 B9 R B
IR B RERE B R RS A
ISNEE

The final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period has not
been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period.
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 BAREEBERKRE @)
(Continued)
(d) Dividends (Continued) (d) BRE #&
(i) Dividends payable to equity (i) FEERAHER S (TEIE(T
shareholders of the Company REEEREL—IRFE
attributable to the previous ®’E

financial year, approved and paid
during the year

2023 2022
—E=F [
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETrx PNEL S

Final dividend in respect of B Pt A I 7 (T Y

the previous financial year, M BFEEXR
approved and paid REBRZBT
during the year of HK$ Nil (—B—_—

(2022: HK$0.056) per share 0.056357T) 21,895
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 BEXR-EERRKRE &)
(Continued)

(e) Special Reserve (e) HIAMKE
At 1 At 31
January December
2023 Accrued Utilised 2023
®
B b ol 2
—E-=H +=RB

—A—H [5373:)4 EBR =+-—8H
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR®TRT AR®ETT

Safety production fund Z&4£EEH = 11,354 (8,886) 2,468
Special reserve represents the safety EEFEERBEVEBRERZ
production fund accrued according to the 2HEEEEEEERN S
article of [2022] No.136 “The regulation on F+ZH+=H#&fr[2022]136
the accrual and usage of enterprise’s safety X (bxZE2EEERRINAME
production fund”, issued by the Ministry of BEBWE) HEZ2EEER -

Finance and State Administration of Work
Safety on 13 December 2022.

The fund is earmarked for improving the L2 EEREMARTSMX
safety of production. The fund is accrued EPEZ2EERT 24 EE
from retained earnings to special reserve and AREERANENESREHEL
converted back to retained earnings when RERREREERF -

utilised.
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 BEX-REERKRE @&

(Continued)

(f)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher equity
shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on
the basis of a net debt-to-total capital ratio.
For this purpose, net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes all interest-bearing
borrowings, shareholder’s loan, consideration
payables, lease liabilities, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position)
less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company, as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debt.

In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 BEXR-EERRKRE &)
(Continued)
() Capital management (Continued) (H BFXER#HE
The Group’s net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 RZEZ = —E_ &+
December 2023 and 2022 was as follows: B=+—H AEENFEEER
EEZEMT -

<R R YT ST 31 December
2023 2022

— T —— —v——ﬂi

+=A +—-AR

=+—0 [

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt WPNCES A ARETT

Current liabilities: REEE
Shareholder’s loan BEEH 18 112,866 106,506
Interest-bearing borrowings HEfEE 19 374,575 244,755
Consideration payable FERRE 20 - 106,655
Lease liabilities HEaE 22 96 175
487,537 458,091

Non-current liabilities: EREGHEE
Interest-bearing borrowings StEEE 19 340,800 501,000
Lease liabilities HEaE 22 - 96
Total debt EFEHEEE 828,337 959,187
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 3 : H4 RIS ZEY) 17 (130,719) (89,431)
Net debt REH 697,618 869,756
Total equity attributable to equity A A TS E

shareholders of the Company P4 48 1 25 816,130 744,885
Total capital =N 1,513,748 1,614,641
Net debt-to-capital ratio BEFEEERLEE 46.09% 53.87%
Neither the Company nor any of its KANB R EEMNE B A BRI
subsidiaries are subject to externally EBHENN 2 B A HH E BRI o

imposed capital requirements.
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CLECE eSS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management
Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks
arising from financial instruments:

° credit risk
o liquidity risk
o market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk, and the Group’s management
of capital.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to
the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group’s receivables from
customers.
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Exposure to credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group
does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group
are mainly held with well-known financial
institutions. Management does not foresee
any significant credit risks from these
deposits and does not expect that these
financial institutions may default and cause
losses to the Group.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 10 to 30 days from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than the credit term given by the Group are
generally requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 91.30% (2022: 92.43%)
and 95.66% (2022: 96.60%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer (including its subsidiaries)
and five largest customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. No ECLs were provided as
at 31 December 2023 as the Group has
limited customers with no historical credit
loss experience and management assessed
the impact of ECLs is insignificant. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables are set out in
note 16.
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(a) EEER #&)
EREREMO (&)
FEEEHNEERRIERS

ERENSGMEE METFLK
EEBFENTENRKRAFE
At AEBHNEAEEETRR
FEAAEREBGERENER

RS EE - RIREMER BNE
% NIBAEEERRY91.30% (ZE -
£ 192.43%) ’95.66% (—ZE_—
£ 1 96.60%) DRKBERERRA
ZE (BREENBAT) REAE
)Elo

AEENEKREZRIBENEEE
BUMEERBEFTERNERE
EEENERFAE- R T =

+ZRB=+—HIUEMEHREE
BEFLHEE DTEREAERER
HEERBIEBEEEHERE
B EEETGERBEESREN
TETREXR - ARAEEMEH
BB REMMREEENEE
R EMEBCIREHI 16
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Group’s reputation.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following are the remaining contractual
maturities of financial liabilities at the
reporting date. The amounts are gross and
undiscounted, and include estimated interest
payments and exclude the impact of netting
agreements:
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 26 ERIT A #@)
Financial risk management (Continued) RERARER &)
Overview (Continued) Bk ()

(b) Liquidity risk (b) FHEEEAMRE

At 31 December 2023
AZEBZ=E+ZA=1-H
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ARRRERRZ AR

More than More than More than [GICRUEN

Within 3 months but 6 months but 9 months but 1 year but
3 months or less than less than less than less than Carrying
on demand 6 months 9 months 1 year 5 years Total amount
ZEARY BB=fRE BBAERE RBAEPE HBA-£E
REXE  OHxER  DRARA DR-F DREE it KEfE

Note RMB000  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMBO000  RMBOO0  RMBIOO0  RMB'000
UES ARRTR  ARRTR  ARETm  ARNTR ARRTR ARETR ABRTR

Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE ) 6,413 206,421 21,321 161,107 359,514 754,776 715,375
Trade and other payables EfERREMNE 25,117 82 216 229 25,644 25,644
Shareholder's loan RRER (i) 112,866 - 112,866 112,866
Lease liabiites fE&RE - 9 98 9%
144,396 206,601 21,537 161,336 359,514 893,384 853,981
At 31 December 2022
RISZZE+ZA=1+-H
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARERERRZ RS TH

More than More than More than More than
Within -~ 3months but 6 months but 9 months but 1 year but

3 months or less than less than less than less than Carrying
on demand 6 months 9 months 1 year 5 years Total amount
ZEAmY RB=ERE BB ERE RBNERE BH-E£E

REXE  ORAER ORABA DR—F DREE ) KaEfE

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi ARBTn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn ARETn

Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE (] 16,874 30,878 126,661 95,187 513,004 782,599 745,755
Consideration payable EfiE - - - 110,228 - 110,228 106,655
Trade and other payables EfEAREMTE 22,084 2,056 8 77 - 24,903 24,003
Shareholder's loan REER (i) 106,506 - - - - 106,506 106,506
Lease liabilties HEER 63 19 - - 98 280 271

145,727 33,248 126,747 205,692 513,102 1,024,516 984,090
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

() In respect of interest-bearing
borrowings as at 31 December 2023,
the related interest-bearing borrowings
of RMB6.4 million due within 3 months
or on demand had been repaid up
to the date of the approval of these
financial statements.

(i)  The shareholder’s loan was over due
as of 31 December 2022 and 2028.
The Group is negotiating repayment
arrangement with Puxing International.

Note 2(b) explains management’s plans for
managing liquidity needs of the Group to
enable it to continue to meet its obligations
as they fall due.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market
prices, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates, will affect the Group’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

(i) Currency risk

The Group’s major businesses are
conducted by the Group’s subsidiaries
located in the PRC. As the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries’ functional currency
is RMB and their businesses are
principally conducted in RMB, the
Group considers the currency risk to be
insignificant.

26
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- ?ﬁ $E % Mj- DI

26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 26 ERITH #)

Financial risk management (Continued) RERRER &)

Overview (Continued) HBEt (7Z)

(c) Market risk (Continued) (c) THiZREE &)

(i) Currency risk (Continueqd) (i) EEEE (&)

The Company and the Hong Kong KRB REBKE QBN I
subsidiaries’ functional currency is EEE¥RAT HEEBEFXEN
Hong Kong dollar and their borrowings AT ETTET AR BTE
are principally conducted in Hong ExHi REBRA BT
Kong dollar or United States Dollar. BMET FEXRESHN ERK
As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged B

to the United States dollar, the Group
considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States
Dollar to be insignificant.

(ii) Interest rate risk (i) FIEREE
The Group’s interest rate risk XEFBNMEXEAREERE
arises primarily from cash and RERREEFEY st2E
cash equivalents, interest-bearing E-REEF - ENIRBATE
borrowings, shareholder’s loan, BB -AEEBEBERSE
consideration payable and lease NEERFEBEMHGER
liabilities. The Group manages its HEHFER -

interest rate exposure by maintaining a
prudent mix of fixed and variable rate

borrowings.

The Group is not exposed to significant AEBUTEMRERASE
interest rate risk for cash and cash BYMASEAFMERR I
equivalents because the interest rates TSR BHETRSMNXRAR
of cash at bank are not expected to SEEREF-

change significantly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MBI MIEE

26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 26 ERET A @)
Financial risk management (Continued) RERRER &)
Overview (Continued) Bk ()
(c) Market risk (Continued) (c) THiZEE &)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIEREE E)
At the end of the reporting period, RGN AEEBNGEE
the interest rate profile of the Group’s MTENFZBSWT
interest-bearing financial liabilities was
as follows:
2023 2022
k- Sk EICF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
{4k (L vilE
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
AEETR ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEfRE:
Shareholder's loan REER 112,866 4.9% 106,506
Consideration payable EfRE - 5% 106,655
Lease liabilities HEAR 9 4.75% o7
112,962 213,432
Variable rate borrowings: BEfEE!
Bank loans RITER 3.5% 72,768 3.5% 70,075
Loans from related parties HEHEX 3.45% - 3.7% 642,607 3.7%-4.75% 675,680

715,375 745,755

828,337 959,187

ZEREFRAT | —B-=SFERE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4o A
i ([

RA 75 ¥ 2R Y 5E

26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(c)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed
rate borrowings

The Group does not account for any
fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the reporting
date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for
variable rate borrowings

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit after tax and consolidated equity
by approximately RMB5,365,000 (2022:
RMB5,593,000).

The sensitivity analysis above
indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk at the end
of the reporting period. The impact
on the Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2023 not provided for in the consolidated financial

statements were as follows:

mE M ERR M EE

27 K

RZFEZ=H+=A=+—B - BER
GEMBERREENRECERRE
BIBMT :

2023 2022

— T ——

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTR NG

Authorised but not contracted for

Contracted for

EREERTL 219,488 43,944

56,167 13,697

275,655 57,641

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31

Name of party
FES %8

December 2023,
transactions with the following parties are
considered as related party transactions.

28 EAMBARS

BE_ZT_=—F+_RBA=+—HL#HF
ErBTAANTZRZEBEEE SR
2o

Relationship

&

Puxing International
ZERER

Wanxiang Group

EEESE

Wanxiang Finance

B
China Wanxiang
HE & A

Shanghai Puxing
b=t

Immediate controlling company
BEERAT

Ultimate controlling company
RARZER AT

Fellow subsidiary
EENGIEYNET

A company controlled by Mr. Lu, who is the
ultimate controlling party of the Company
RARNBREIER B EEZEGTNAF

Fellow subsidiary
EENGIEYAET
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28 EARRAMARS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(a) Material related party transactions and (a) HRAEGAETHERRABAERS
balances with related parties RELiR
The Group entered into the following material AEBCDT LU TEKRAB AR
related party transactions: 5

2023 2022
TEIC-F gt

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR NG

Net deposit in RTHEFNERSLE

Wanxiang Finance B[ 7% 17,449

Loans from RAIESE

Wanxiang Finance g 324,800 368,000

Loans repaid to BERMERER

Shanghai Puxing e 70,000 -

Wanxiang Finance BRI 287,800 224,000

Consideration payable repaid to  {EiEE{I{LE

Shanghai Puxing abi=h=s 100,000
— Interest Income FISWKA

Wanxiang Finance BRI 572
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Material related party transactions
and balances with related parties

mE M ERR M EE

28 EAMBMARS #@)

(a) MBS ETHEAMBAERS
R (@)

(Continued)
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETr PNEE:RwE
Interest expenses MERE
Wanxiang Finance BEMB 19,945
Shanghai Puxing e
— Interest-bearing borrowings — 5T EER 8,871
— Consideration payable — BB 8,610
Puxing International 2 R 4,565

The balances arising from the significant
transactions between the Group and the
above related parties as at 31 December

2023 are as follows:

R-_EBE_=F+"_A=+—H>=&
EEEAFABBANERR SN
EEMERIT .

2023 2022

= g
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
INEI ARETrx PNEL:Sw

Puxing International T 2
— Shareholder’s loan —RKREEXR 18 (112,866) (106,5086)
Shanghai Puxing TBEE
— Interest-bearing borrowings —stEBE 19 (70,000)
- Consideration payable —EARE 20 (106,655)
Wanxiang Finance Bm
— Interest-bearing borrowings —stEEE 19 (642,607) (605,680)

— Demand deposits

—EHER 127,374 86,114
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28 EARRAMARS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Key management personnel (b) TEEERASHE
remuneration
Remuneration for key management AEEFEEEAEMNE (BEFED
personnel of the Group, including amounts MIsF8 PRI ENE S KM EFIR
paid to the Directors as disclosed in note 8 FIEENETREHEESZNN
and certain of the highest paid employees as TREWT -

disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

2023 2022
—EZ=F ik

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETr PNEL:Swr

Short-term employee benefits RS R 1,008 1,391

Post-employment benefits BB EER 74 105
1,496

Total remuneration is included in “personnel MEaezEst ATE I 4 (BHEE

costs” (see note 5(b)). 5(b))
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n‘7|_\ j- i‘z $E % Iﬂj- I:II

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules

28 EAMBMARS #@)

(c) FHMEXBHLHRUZER

relating to connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect
of interest-bearing borrowings borrowed
from Puxing International, Shanghai Puxing
and Wanxiang Finance as disclosed in note
28(a) above constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. However, these
transactions are financial assistance received
by the Group from a connected person or
commonly held entity and are fully exempt
from the disclosure requirements under rule
14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect
of deposits in Wanxiang Finance
(including interests) as disclosed in note
28(a) constitute continuing connected
transactions and connected transaction
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules respectively. The relevant disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the section headed
“Transactions disclosed in accordance with
the Listing Rules” of the Directors’ report.

RE

HERZERKE B ERE M
HKENNtEEERRNEK A
5 (R EXE28(a)iE) B
FERERS (EFER ELMRAUF
14AE) o AT ZER G AEE
BRAEALTHRHEBFE B R W
BB E B > BRI AR R 55 14A. 901K
E2ERRETLHRINEE
HE

R EXHFE28()IKBEARBAR S HE
MHEER(BENR) WSS
DHBAFBRER S RAER S
(E&R EHRAE14AE) - £
RAF14AZTRENHEBKEE R
EEEHRSEMRELHRAIKERN
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r o 75 AR MY 5

29 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 29

FINANCIAL POSITION

2023
Note RMB’000
iSE ARt
Non-current assets JERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R E AR #E S (i) 536,364
536,364
Current assets BB E
Other receivables HAuh W IE
Cash and cash equivalents REMRBEEEY
Current liabilities b =R
Shareholder’s loan REER 18 112,866
Trade and other payables BB 5 R EMRIE 48,831
161,697
Net current liabilities RHAaEFHE (161,405)
Total assets less current liabilities A EERGEHEAE 374,959
NET ASSETS BERE 374,959
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERi#E 25(a)
Share capital RN 25(b) 40,149
Reserves i 334,810
TOTAL EQUITY 4B 374,959
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REEEBMBRTR

2022

=

— =

RMB’000
AEBTT

531,918

531,918

106,506
48,341

154,847

(152,820)

379,098

379,098

40,149
338,949

379,098
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29 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(i) Interests in subsidiaries

29

mE M ERR M EE

AEEEHNMBRRE @)

() MHEBABER

Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

KRB RAENKE
FEUL I B A B R IA

2023 2022
ZEZCF i
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR PBNEL:Swr
223,381 223,381
312,983 308,537
536,364 531,918

Amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
term of repayment.

30 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE

31

REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant non-adjusting event after
the reporting period that need to be disclosed.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

As at 31 December 2023, the Directors consider
the ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Mr. Lu, an individual person.

As at 31 December 2023, the Directors consider
the immediate and ultimate controlling company
of the Group to be Puxing International and
Wanxiang Group respectively, which are
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the
PRC respectively. These entities do not produce
financial statements available for public use.

30

31

R B ABMREDEIER 22
R B E SE AR o

WERRIFAESRRA

MERSHEREAFARSTEATR

& o

BERERREERT

R-IB_=ZF+"RA=+—H &5
HEEBNERRIERSABRE HEB
(PN
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REEENERRREIERIBDHB
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 3 HE-_E-_=F+="B=+—H
NEW STANDARDS AND IFFEEBHEKBE ‘rﬁﬂ%i?ﬁzﬂ’]ﬂ%%} .
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT HE]ZEA RERENRGELE

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial HEZSEVMERRTIZEBH HEgst
statements, the IASB has issued a number of ZHEBEEEEEAEE_S _=ZF1+=
new and or amended standards, which are not B=1+—HIEFEHREMBREZE
yet effective for the year ended 31 December TSR R A 2 ZIER 5] R A&
2023 and which have not been adopted in these SIZERo L EEROEEEANER T
financial statements. These developments include TEERE o

the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTHESZ#E
R E s IR ER
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements. Classification of 1 January 2024
liabilities as current or non-current (‘2020 amendments”)
BIR St EFIR BTN HBEREXES - BIESES B HIFE “EMFE—A—H
(ZE_FFEFTX)
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Non-current 1 January 2024
liablilities with covenants (‘2022 amendments”)
BPRE st ZR BRI 4 HBIREXZS - AN IERE &R “EMFE—HA—H
(_ T FEETE)
Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
BB S ENEI6K B N HE  ERLHAFHHEE R “EOFE—H—H
Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows and IFRS 7, Financial 1 January 2024
Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements
B G st ERE7R  HEe AEXKRBERABREENETHRZETA —_E_mM&E—HF—H

THIR KE REBFHRELH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MBI MIEE

32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 32 HE-—E-_=F+="B=+—H
NEW STANDARDS AND IFEEBHEMKE ‘r'ﬁal%i%zﬂ’w;‘:? .
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT METEBRZRENTELE (&

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2023 (Continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTHESHZE
RN SR ER
Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates: 1 January 2025
Lack of exchangeability
BlFR & 5t RSB 2B 4 BEXEEHZE =] BRI “ERF—HA—H
The Group is in the process of making an AEBFFTHZEZRNEXNERBHEB
assessment of what the impact of these TEHAG RN E o2t REER A K
developments is expected to be in the period of MZEEEITHEEVBERRENE
initial application. So far it has concluded that the o

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B E

RESULTS E |

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—BC-= R CF B —T-TE —T-hE
UMM  RMB'OOO  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'00D
IS AE%&Tr AREBTR AR®TrT ARETR®
Revenue W 513,510 753,307 601,573 580,240 463,119
Profit before taxation BRI AR 107,637 76,578 154,191 171,352 150,858
Income tax g (36,797) (24,648) (50,399) (47,678) (45,642)
Profit for the year EREF 70,840 51,930 103,792 123,674 105,216
Attributable to: KUTALFEL
Equity shareholders of AREEmRE
the Company N 70,842 51,932 103,825 124,190 105,219
Non-controlling interests FERER 2 2) (33) (516) )
Profit for the year ERNEF] 70,840 51,930 103,792 123,674 105,216
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
As at 31 December
®+=ZB=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
k- o} “BCF BT —BE-BEFE “E-RF
GIEUON  RMB'OOO  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
NS \RETr AR®ETR ARETR ARETR
ASSETS BE
Current assets MEEE 251,272 221,946 228,693 239,543 183,512
- Non-current assets ErREEE WYERITS 1557764 1,629,654 1,697,480 1,771,567
Total assets mEE 1,729,629 1,779,710 1,858,347 1,937,023 1,955,079
LIABILITIES &ff
Current liabilities wEEE 536,271 504,796 565,303 453,781 514,565
Non-current liabilities EREas 377,245 530,044 574,191 832,027 453,706
Total liabilities meE 913,516 1,034,840 1,139,494 1,285,808 968,271
Net assets BESE 816,113 744,870 718,853 651,215 968,808
EQUITY i
Equity shareholders of AREEmRE
the Company " 816,130 744,885 718,866 651,200 986,277
Non-controlling interests FERER (17) (15) (13) 15 531
Total equity s 816,113 744,870 718,853 651,215 968,808
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PUXING ENERGY LIMITED

Room 706, 7/F., Albion Plaza, 2-6 Granville Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BBNERDIEMEREE 2-655
BEMEARETET06E

WWW.puxing-energy.com
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